
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the September 18, 2024 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 3.a. Consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan for the
property located on 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive

 Attachment

 3.b. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3854 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of
Beloit for the property located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive  Staff Report is included under
3a.

  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of a four-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 3500 and
3600 Eagles Ridge Drive

 Attachment

 4.b. Consideration of Phase Two Improvements to Turtle Creek Park located at 1312 East
Grand Avenue

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Rezoning of 1712 Cranston 
PUD for 1407 Liberty, 1112 and 1118 Garfield 
Permanent Zoning for 2221 Milwaukee Road 
Final Plat - Prairie Corners
Rezoning of 2426 Prairie Avenue
Annexation of 1990 E. Bradley Street 

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Park Improvements - Regina Dunkin Park and Vernon Park
Annexation on Murphy Woods Road

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, October 9, 2024

 

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - October 9, 2024

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2896142/09-18-2024_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2910003/PC_Report_-_PUD-2024-05_and_ZMA-2024-08__3500_Eagles_Ridge_-_2nd_PC.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2896144/PC_Report_-_CSM-2024-17__3500_and_3600_Eagles_Ridge_Drive_UPDATED_DATE.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2896475/PC_Report_-RPB-2024-07__1312_E._Grand_Ave.pdf


 
  
7. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - October 9, 2024

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
MINUTES 

PLAN COMMISSION 
City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

7:00 PM 
Wednesday, September 18, 2024 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Commissioners Ramsden, 
Abarca, Elliott, Winkelmann, and Flesch were present. Commissioners Anderson and 
Jacobsen and Councilor Day were absent. 
 

2. MINUTES 
Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion to approve the Minutes, seconded by 
Commissioner Abarca.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).   
 
Chairperson Ramsden indicated that they would be moving item 4b, Final Plat for Prairie 
Corners to following item 3a. 
  

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
3.a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-028 approving an Extraterritorial Preliminary Plat 

of Prairie Corners in the Town of Beloit 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann asked about the city water being supplied to the township 
and if that is typical. Ms. Christensen confirmed that it is, noting that the city acquired 
the water utility from Alliant Energy, which has historically served areas beyond the 
city limits, including parts of the Town of Beloit. The Water Resources Department has 
been collaborating with engineers on this project to ensure everything is executed 
properly. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann asked if this was uncommon. Ms. Christensen responded 
that they will need an easement for the water, which isn’t something you see 
frequently, but it aligns with how the water utility operates. Unlike the city's sewer 
ordinance, which mandates connections and prohibits service beyond our boundaries, 
the water situation is different. Alliant Energy formerly provided service to the Town 
of Turtle, Town of Beloit, and City of Beloit. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing.   
 
Commissioner Flesch made a motion to approve the Extraterritorial Preliminary Plat, 
seconded by Commissioner Winkelmann.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).  

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

3.b. Consideration of an Extraterritorial Final Plat of Prairie Corners in the Town of Beloit 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion to approve an Extraterritorial Final Plat, 
seconded by Commissioner Flesch.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
 

3.c. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3855 amending the Zoning District Map of the City 
of Beloit for the property located at 2426 Prairie Ave 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing.   
 
Chairperson Ramsden expressed his concerns about designating this property as 
commercial given its surroundings, and he indicated that he would be voting against 
the proposal.  He felt this property is more appropriate for residential. 
 
Commissioner Elliott made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 3855, seconded by 
Commissioner Abarca.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
 

3.d. Consideration of Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan for the 
property located on 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked Ms. Christensen whether the staff report indicates that 
the development requires two access points, and if this is mandated by Beloit 
ordinance. Ms. Christensen stated that the PUD requires every development to have 
two access points, which also serves the purpose of facilitating fire response. 
Chairperson Ramsden said that it rules out the single access point off Gateway 
Boulevard. Ms. Christensen said yes it does.  
 
Commissioner Winkelmann noted that the ordinance does not prohibit having both 
access points off Gateway Boulevard. Ms. Christensen said that there is still a concern 
regarding a long dead end if both access points are situated there. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened the public hearing. 
 
Ian Owen, 1725 Raven Drive, a five-year resident of Eagles Ridge subdivision, conveyed 
concerns shared by fellow residents regarding the anticipated increase in residents and 
vehicles, which could pose safety issues at the intersection of Eagle Ridge Drive and 
Gateway Boulevard. He pointed out that visibility at that intersection is already 
compromised due to the elevation of the property. 

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Additionally, he raised concerns about the street proposed as part of the development, 
predicting it would lead to increased traffic and noise on Eagles Ridge Drive. He 
mentioned that the subdivision feels there is insufficient parking, contributing to 
congestion, noise, and light pollution. Mr. Owen expressed worries about 
environmental impacts, citing an inadequate buffer between the new development 
and existing properties. Given the limited information provided during the 
presentation, residents are requesting increased setbacks and enhanced landscaping 
to create a clearer separation between the two areas. 
 
Ryan Koehn, residing at 3701 Prairie Falcon Pass, expressed ongoing concerns about 
the city's failure to address certain needs, particularly regarding incomplete sidewalks 
and bike paths. He highlighted the safety issues related to traffic on those streets, 
noting that he and his wife often have to leave the sidewalk to access public pathways. 
While they appreciate the green space in the area, the potential increase in density 
raises concerns about preserving that space for local residents. He suggested that 
there is room for developers to create their own parks to enhance the development, 
if it proceeds. 
 
Jennifer Gunderson, residing at 3734 Prairie Falcon Pass, mentioned that she and her 
husband often have to walk in the street because there are no sidewalks connecting 
to the park. She expressed concern that the proposed development would lead to 
more families walking in the street to reach the park. Additionally, she raised issues 
about potholes on the road, worrying that increased traffic may encourage drivers to 
use the neighborhood as a shortcut, which poses safety risks. She believes there is 
significant potential to better utilize the existing space and that adding more people 
too quickly would worsen the current problems. 
 
Solomon Rudy, residing at 3750 Eagles Ridge Drive, mentioned that he lives near the 
end of Gateway. He has observed an increase in traffic since the industrial 
development began, noting that many drivers take shortcuts by going east off Gateway 
to avoid traffic lights, particularly when heading to places like Amazon or Spraytek. He 
is concerned that the eastern driveway portion of the development will become the 
primary route for those units, causing residents to cut through the neighborhood to 
reach their jobs. This is especially concerning given the heavy traffic on Gateway, 
noting that making left turns across traffic during rush hour is particularly challenging. 
He also expressed concerns about the bike path not connecting to the park. 

 
Terri Rousseau, 1602 Hawks Pass, expressed her agreement with the previous speakers 
and wanted to emphasize that the subdivision is still growing. She believes that adding 
such density to the area, especially considering the size of the completed subdivision, 
exceeds what the community can handle. Regarding safety, she highlighted concerns 
about the intersection at Gateway Boulevard and Eagles Ridge Drive, noting the 
challenges of navigating traffic from both directions, along with the presence of semi-
trucks and speeding vehicles. With three other driveways from existing apartment 

5



 

4 | P a g e  
 

complexes in close proximity, she feels this would further complicate the intersection's 
safety. Additionally, she pointed out that the development would intrude on the 
privacy of current residents, with new buildings overlooking their backyards, decks, 
and patios. She believes this development would negatively impact the peace, well-
being, and safety of both current and future residents of the subdivision. 
 
James Robertson, residing at 3725 Golden Eagle Drive since 2011, remarked that he 
has witnessed significant development in the area, especially before the arrival of 
Amazon and Spraytek. He has observed an increase in truck traffic trying to navigate 
through residential streets, and noted that there has been an installation of "no truck" 
signs on roads that used to be country lanes recently. He expressed hesitation about 
approving any plans without thoroughly evaluating the area's topography and 
suggested that officials should drive down those roads to understand the current 
conditions and sidewalk availability. He pointed out that during winter, snow removal 
services often prioritize other roads, leaving his street as a potential ice hazard. He also 
questioned when the development would address the need for more entrances for 
incoming residents, emphasizing that increased traffic remains his primary concern. 
 
Chris Day, The Alexander Company, shared that they are a second-generation real 
estate development and property management firm based in Madison, Wisconsin. He 
and his partner Collin have been with the company for 10 and 20 years, respectively. 
As a full-service development and property management group, they provide in-house 
services that encompass property development, construction oversight, design, and 
serving as the architect of record for their projects. Once construction is completed, 
they maintain an in-house operations team that includes on-site property 
management and maintenance staff, along with compliance personnel and support 
roles at their corporate office. 
 
Batterman’s will serve as their site engineer, and they plan to hire local contractors 
from the community. The company has three primary goals for this project: addressing 
the lack of quality affordable workforce housing in the community, enhancing 
workforce retention, and supporting low-income housing initiatives. Mr. Day explained 
that they are seeking a PUD to allow for multiple buildings on site. They have 
considered the appropriate density transition starting at Gateway, with the apartment 
buildings across the street leading into the new neighborhood. Their concept involves 
two-story buildings with 12 to 16 units each, designed to transition sensitively into the 
surrounding single-family homes. 
 
In the second phase, they plan to collaborate with local home builders to layout future 
lots for single-family and duplex-style units on approximately five acres as they move 
toward the new neighborhood. Their aim is to match the existing neighborhood in 
terms of building types, styles, and exterior finishes. 
 

6



 

5 | P a g e  
 

Tim Anderson, a resident of Eagles Ridge, expressed his concerns about the numerous 
open lots along Eagles Ridge Drive and how this development could alter the character 
of the neighborhood. He urged others to look beyond the company's website and read 
external reviews of The Alexander Company, as he believes they are largely negative 
and that many others share his sentiments. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing.   
 
Commissioner Elliott believes that more work needs to be done before the project can 
move forward and inquired about the timeline for when construction would begin. Ms. 
Christensen indicated that he would need to consult the developer. Mr. Day responded 
that their plan is to secure financing with the goal of breaking ground early next spring. 
Commissioner Elliott acknowledged the need for housing but expressed concern that 
the developers have not taken the time to address the community's concerns. 
 
Commissioner Elliott then made a motion to deny the zoning change for the PUD, 
which was seconded by Commissioner Winkelmann. 
 
He noted that Gateway Boulevard provides a separation between the current 
apartment complexes and Eagles Ridge. While he recognizes the housing demand in 
Beloit, he suggested that there may be other suitable locations for development. He is 
open to considering those options, but feels that starting construction in the spring 
leaves too little time to adequately address the concerns raised. 
 
Commissioner Flesch noted the concerns regarding park and play area accessibility for 
residents, emphasizing the need for onsite recreational facilities rather than those 
located farther away. Mr. Day responded that while they have considered this in the 
past, they prefer the parks to be city-owned and plan to discuss this with city staff. 
 
Commissioner Flesch also mentioned that a traffic impact analysis will be necessary. 
Ms. Christensen indicated that this has not been addressed thus far. Commissioner 
Flesch recommended that they conduct such an analysis, as it could influence the 
requirements for the intersection at Gateway and Eagles Ridge. He emphasized the 
importance of considering the existing complexes on the west side of Gateway 
Boulevard, along with their access points and proximity to the intersection. 
 
Commissioner Abarca shared his traffic concerns, mentioning that after examining 
Google Earth, he thinks the road may not be sufficiently wide to accommodate the 
increase in residents. He highlighted that exiting onto Gateway Boulevard, particularly 
with the other apartments across the street, could create substantial traffic 
congestion. He is in favor of conducting a traffic impact study and suggested 
postponing the item to allow for further evaluation and solutions. 
 

7



 

6 | P a g e  
 

Commissioners asked if there would be a charge for parking, and Chris Day indicated 
there would not be.  In response to a question from the Commission, Chris Day 
explained the difference between Section 42 and Section 8 housing. 
 
Ms. Christensen added that Section 42 is a subsidy for developers, where tax credits 
are sold and invested into the project. In return for these credits, developers must rent 
to individuals within a specified income range, which for this development is generally 
higher than what we've seen in developments like those on Sixth Street or the former 
YMCA site. While it is considered low-income housing, it is not at the lowest income 
levels. 
 
Commissioner Elliott expressed concerns about how the new building might impact 
nearby property values. Mr. Day responded that they have not found any studies, data, 
or research indicating that a multi-family housing development negatively affects 
home values in the area. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden stated that one of his responsibilities on the Plan Commission 
has been to listen to the concerns of other citizens, and he has noted significant 
opposition to the project from the neighborhood. While he is not against increasing 
the affordable housing stock in the city, he feels that when enough residents express 
worries about their property values and quality of life, it is important to take those 
concerns seriously. Therefore, he will voting against the PUD. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann proposed tabling the item to allow for further review, 
including a traffic impact analysis, additional information on a play area and park, input 
from Public Works regarding off-site issues, and a closer examination of parking 
numbers.  
 
Commission Elliott agreed to withdraw his motion to deny, and Commissioner 
Winkelmann withdrew his second.   
 
Motion to layover was made by Commissioner Winkelmann the item to allow for 
further review, including a traffic impact analysis, additional information on a play area 
and park, input from Public Works regarding off-site issues, and a closer examination 
of parking numbers. Commissioner Abarca seconded the motion. Motion carried, voice 
vote 5-0. 
 

3.e. Consideration of Ordinance No 3854 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of 
Beloit for the property located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing.   
 

8



 

7 | P a g e  
 

Commissioner Flesch made a motion to lay over the Ordinance, seconded by 
Commissioner Jacobsen. Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
 

4. REPORTS 
4.a. Consideration of a four-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 3500 

and 3600 Eagles Ridge Drive 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Abarca made a motion to lay over the CSM, seconded by Commissioner 
Elliott.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).  

 
4.b. Consideration of a Resolution 2024-027 approving a two-lot Certified Survey Map for 

the property located at 2909 Ford Street 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann made a motion to approve the two-lot CSM, seconded by 
Commissioner Flesch.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
 

4.c. Consideration of a request to annex 1990 E Bradley Street into the City of Beloit from 
the Town of Turtle 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Abarca made a motion to approve the annexation, seconded by 
Commissioner Flesch.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
 

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Julie Christensen provided an update on items previously reviewed by the Commission. 
 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. The next meeting is scheduled for 
October 23, 2024.    
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Flesch made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner 
Abarca at 8:57PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 

 
 

 
  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

9



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  October 9, 

2024 Agenda Item:  3.a and 3.b 

File Number:  PUD-2024-05 and ZMA-2024-08 

General Information 

Applicant:  Joseph M. Alexander for The Alexander Company 
Owner:  City of Beloit 
Address/Location:  3500 Eagles Ridge Drive 

Note: Additional information since the September 18, 2024 Plan Commission is shown in red. 

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Joseph M. Alexander for The Alexander Company has submitted 
an application for review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment for a portion of the 
property located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive from R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential 
District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District. The applicant has also submitted an 
application for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the subject 
property. This proposed development is for a multi-family residential development on an 8.662-
acre parcel, which is proposed to be subdivided from a 15.182-acre parcel currently owned by 
the City of Beloit.  A portion of the remaining land totaling 5.853 acres is a future development 
parcel that will likely be developed with residential uses, but there are no plans at this time. 
The multi-family development site is located more 600 feet from the single family development 
to the east of the development site.  The remaining acreage includes a narrow strip of land that 
is proposed to be added to the water tower parcel making it 2.028 acres total, and 0.099 acres 
on the southeast corner of Eagles Ridge Drive and Gateway Boulevard, which is proposed to be 
an outlot for the existing neighborhood sign. In order to reconfigure the existing parcels for 
these purposes, a Certified Survey Map (CSM) has been submitted concurrently with the PUD 
Master Land Use Plan to subdivide the City-owned parcels located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive 
and 3600 Eagles Ridge Drive (the water tower parcel) into three lots plus one outlot totaling 
16.642 acres.   

Background: Earlier this year, the City Council approved a $6 million grant program funded 
through Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) to provide grants to housing developers to create 
and/or preserve affordable rental homes. Housing demand in Beloit, similar to much of the 
country, has contributed to a lack of affordable housing options for Beloit’s workforce, and so 
the grant funding is intended to provide gap financing to developers seeking tax credit 
incentives through the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority (WHEDA). 
Successful applicants of the City’s grant program are required to keep the housing units 
affordable to working families in accordance with WHEDA guidelines. On June 17, 2024, the City 
Council awarded $3 million to The Alexander Company for the Gateway Multi-Family 
development project at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive.  The remaining $3 million was awarded to 

10



Alternative Continuum of Care for the multi-family development approved in 2023 at the 
former YMCA site located at 1865 Riverside Drive. The grant funds are subject to the applicant’s 
receipt of tax credits through WHEDA, the applicant’s ability to secure all other funding needed, 
and land use and zoning approvals including approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan and 
rezoning to PUD. 

Public Notice: Proper public notice of the proposal was provided including mailed notices to 
property owners within 150 feet of the parcel. As of the writing of this report, 30 letters were 
received from neighboring residents objecting to the proposed development. Neighbors are 
concerned that the rezoning to PUD will increase the number of units allowed on the site (in 
actuality, the proposed PUD decreases the number allowed compared to the current R-3 
zoning).  Neighbors also expressed that they are not in favor of affordable housing in this 
location, as well as concerns about traffic, property values, parking overflow onto public 
streets, crime, loss of greenspace, noise and other concerns.  In an effort to respond to these 
concerns, the applicant held an informational neighborhood meeting on September 11 at 
G·FIVE Brewing Company to introduce themselves to the community and describe their 
proposal. After an introductory presentation with the entire group, the development team 
broke out into smaller groups to listen to resident concerns and answer questions.  Residents 
expressed many of the concerns that were included in the written letters. The meeting lasted a 
little more than an hour, and was well attended with approximately 60 neighbors present.     

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process:  A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district 
and a type of development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans.  No 
rights of development apply to a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD 
plan. PUDs are processed in three stages: Master Land Use Plan, Rezoning to PUD district and 
Final (Site) Plan. Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map Amendments may be processed 
concurrently, provided that no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until approval of a PUD 
Master Land Use Plan. 

Staff Analysis 

Project Summary: The applicant has proposed the construction of seven multi-family 
residential buildings, each with 12 to 16 units, with up to 94 total units total on 8.662 acres.  
According to the applicant, the proposed buildings are two-story modern apartment buildings 
with a mix of unit floor plans consisting of one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and three-bedroom 
units. Building 2 near the northwest portion of the project will include a community room, 
fitness center and business center for use by the residents, and a full-time property manager’s 
office. The project will also have on-site maintenance staff. All units will be accessible by 
individual private entries. The footprint for buildings 1, 3, 5 and 7 toward the southern portion 
of the site will be approximately 6,900 square feet each.  The footprint for buildings 2, 4 and 6 
toward the northern portion of the site will be approximately 7,900 square feet each. The total 
building coverage for all seven buildings is approximately 51,300 square feet. The preliminary 
plans show 92 apartment units, but note that there is a potential of 94 apartment units. 
Because the site is sloped, buildings will generally be a split-level design with two stories facing 

11



south and the upper story facing north.  Conceptually, buildings 2, 4 and 6 toward the northern 
portion of the site are positioned such that the ground floor is more or less concealed by the 
hillside to the north.

The apartment site includes a private access drive off Gateway Boulevard located about 400 
feet south of the intersection of Gateway Boulevard and Eagles Ridge Drive.  The private access 
drive continues through the entire PUD area and connects to Eagles Ridge Drive through a 
proposed access easement west of the development parcel.  In the future, a public street may 
be built off Eagles Ridge Drive to serve this proposed development, future development on the 
5.853 acres just west of the proposed development, and future development south of the site, 
which the Comprehensive Plan designates as Planned Neighborhood.   

One of the concerns expressed at the September 18, 2024 Plan Commission was the impact the 
proposed development would have on traffic.  Following the Plan Commission meeting, the 
applicant contracted TADI, Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc. to prepare the attached Technical 
Memorandum on Trip Generation Comparison & Sight Distance Evaluation for the Proposed 
Multi‐Family Development at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive.  TADI’s analysis determined that the 
proposed development will generate 450 trips during a typical weekday, with 45 trips in the AM 
peak hour and 45 trips in the PM peak hour. The memorandum notes that if 216 units were 
developed as allowed under the current R-3 zoning, 1,460 daily trips would be generated with 
90 trips in the AM peak hour and 115 trips in the PM peak hour. 

The memorandum also evaluated the capacity of Gateway Boulevard to handle the additional 
traffic from the proposed development, and it was determined that the proposed development 
will have minimal impact on Gateway Boulevard’s capacity (one-percent impact for the four-
lane section heading north and two-percent impact for the two-lane section heading south).  
Even with the proposed development, Gateway Boulevard would be at only 22-35 percent 
capacity. 

Lastly, TADI evaluated the intersection of Eagles Ridge Drive and Gateway Boulevard, and 
determined that it “meets intersection sight distance requirements for vehicles exiting from 
Eagles Ridge Drive, and stopping sight distance requirements for vehicles traveling through on 
Gateway Boulevard.”  

Parking is provided on each side of the proposed private access drive totaling 154 stalls.  The 
Zoning Ordinance requires one and one-half parking stalls per dwelling unit for a multi-family 
development, which for a 94-unit development would be 141 stalls.  Parking standards can be 
modified through the PUD process, but it is not necessary to do so in this case since more stalls 
are provided that what would otherwise be required by code.  Sidewalks are proposed from all 
private apartment unit entrances to the parking lot areas, along the parking areas, to the 
resident paved terrace/grilling area, and to the existing Gateway Boulevard path. 

An additional concern expressed at the September 18, 2024 Plan Commission meeting was that 
there was not enough onsite parking proposed for the development.  The Zoning Ordinance 

12



requires one and one-half parking stalls per dwelling unit for a multi-family development, which 
for a 94-unit development would be 141 stalls. The applicant is proposing 154 stalls.   

The applicant provided information on parking needs for five similar affordable apartment 
developments in similar suburban-style neighborhoods.  Based on tenant vehicle registrations 
at each property, on average across all five properties, there are 0.61 stalls needed per one-
bedroom unit, 0.72 stalls needed per two-bedroom unit, and 1.20 stalls needed per three-
bedroom unit.  Applying those ratios to the Beloit project based on number of units of each 
type (one, two and three bedroom), 65 parking stalls would be needed.  Using the maximum 
number of vehicles per unit type from the five similar properties, rather than average, 96 
parking stalls would be needed (based on 0.95 stalls needed per one-bedroom unit, 1.13 stalls 
needed per two-bedroom unit, and 1.20 stalls needed per three-bedroom unit). 

The applicant also looked at the number of people over the age of 16 by unit type for those five 
similar properties.  On average across all five properties, there are 1.08 persons 16 or older per 
each one-bedroom unit, 1.28 persons 16 or older per each two-bedroom unit, and 1.40 persons 
16 or older per each three-bedroom unit. Applying those ratios to the Beloit project based on 
number of units of each type (one, two and three bedroom), 109 parking stalls would be 
needed.  Using the maximum number of persons 16 or older per unit type from the five similar 
properties, rather than average, 127 parking stalls would be needed (based on 1.17 stalls per 
each one-bedroom unit, 1.68 stalls per each two-bedroom unit, and 1.40 stalls per each three-
bedroom unit). 

These two methods illustrate that based on similar projects, the number of units proposed for 
the Beloit project could generate a maximum parking need of 127 stalls, leaving about 27 extra 
spaces for visitors.  In reality, the applicant points out that 100% of people 16 or older do not 
have cars, and so the actual parking need is likely much less than 127, and likely even less than 
the average of 109.  

The City’s recently adopted Comprehensive Plan recommends Planned Neighborhood for the 
subject property, which is a carefully planned mix of single dwelling unit detached or attached, 
two-dwelling, multi-dwelling buildings, small scale business, community facilities, and parks, 
recreation, and conservancy uses consistent with Traditional Neighborhood Design principles 
and forms of development. The proposed land use is consistent with those allowed in an overall 
Planned Neighborhood, and consistent with the proposed rezoning to PUD. The applicant is 
seeking approval of a PUD to allow multiple buildings on one zoning lot.  

Under the current R-3 zoning, one multi-family structure with up to 216 units is allowed by right 
on the 8.662 parcel.  If for example, that 8.662-acre parcel was subdivided into 18 lots, with 
each lot being approximately 20,962 square feet, and one multi-family building was placed on 
each lot, the number of units allowed in each building would be 12 under the current R-3, Low-
Density Multi-Family Residential District zoning, which totals 216 units over the 18 lots and 
buildings.  The applicant however, is proposing seven buildings, with up to 94 total units.  The 

13



only reason a PUD is required, as opposed to leaving the zoning R-3, is to allow multiple 
buildings on one zoning lot. 

Play Space 

Another concern expressed at the September 18, 2024 Plan Commission meeting was that 
there was no specific play space included in the PUD Master Land Use Plan for children that will 
reside in the proposed apartment buildings.  Note that the applicant has roughly 4.7 acres or 54 
percent of the total PUD area planned for open space which currently exceeds the minimum 
open space requirement of 15 percent.  As part of that open space, the applicant is designating 
3,800 square feet of play space adjacent to the two resident terrace/grilling stations. The play 
space area is based on the applicant’s expectation that about 30 children age 14 and under will 
live onsite (based on their similar developments), and that each child should have at least 75 
square feet of play space (a Department of Children and Families standard used for group child 
care centers and school child care programs). Approximately 127 square feet of play space is 
proposed per child, based on an anticipated 30 children.  The space will be graded flat to be a 
usable grass play space.  

Outdoor Signage Overview:

The Outdoor Sign Regulations note that “The City Council shall determine the maximum area, 
height and number of signs to be allowed in a planned unit development.” While the Outdoor 
Sign Regulations do not apply to the PUD, how the proposed sign package differs from what 
would be allowed under strict compliance with the code is described below. 

The sign package exhibits for the development have not been submitted for review as part of 
the PUD Master Land Use Plan; however, the applicant has indicated that proposed signage 
includes: 

 One monument sign at the Gateway Boulevard driveway entrance with 100 square feet 
maximum area and 6 feet in height.  

 Two ground signs, one located at the southwest corner of Building 2 and one located at 
the secondary east access driveway, with 50 square feet maximum area and 4-foot 
height each.  

 One building mounted blade type sign at the southwest corner of Building 2 with 30 
square feet maximum area.  

The total sign area proposed is 230 square feet.  For comparison, the Outdoor Sign Regulations 
allow a maximum outdoor sign area of 64 square feet in the R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family 
Residential District.  The sign regulations also specify that the number of Multiple-Family 
Dwelling signs allowed per site is one, and that it does not exceed 32 square feet in area (16 
square feet per side) and six feet in height. However, on a corner lot, two such signs, one facing 
each street, may be allowed, which is the only case where the maximum outdoor sign area of 
64 square feet total would be permitted. In the case of the subject property, one sign would be 

14



allowed along Gateway Boulevard and one along Eagles Ridge Drive by code, with the total area 
of all signs capped at 64 square feet based on the existing R-3 zoning.   

Consistent with other recently approved multi-family projects, two monument or two ground 
signs, or one monument and one ground sign up to 32 square feet each side, and one wall 
blade sign that does not exceed the height of the roofline and 30 square feet (total both sides) 
is recommended as part of the PUD approval.   

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use:  There are residential properties to the north and east of 
the subject property zoned R-1A, Single Family Residential District, and multifamily residential 
uses to the west zoned PUD, Planned Unit Development.  To the south is a vacant parcel zoned 
M-2, General Manufacturing District in the City of Beloit and agricultural land zoned A-E, 
Exclusive Agricultural District in the Town of Turtle. 

Review Agent Comments: The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) was sent to the City 
of Beloit staff and utility contacts, and they have the following comments: 

Storm Water
 City GIS mapping shows an existing culvert under Gateway Boulevard near the southwest 

corner of this property. Pending the actual location of the culvert (whether it is within the 
Gateway Boulevard right-of-way, or if it is located on the property), a municipal easement 
may be required. The culvert location should be shown on the submitted site plan. 

 While stormwater management design, calculations, and report for the development will be 
submitted and reviewed as part of the future site plan submittal, in looking at the 2020 lidar 
contours, it appears that there is an existing swale along the south side of the property, 
which accommodates runoff from lands east of the proposed development. If this existing 
swale is altered by the proposed development, the stormwater management design will 
need to include measures to allow flow from lands to the east to continue to flow onto and 
through this property towards Gateway Boulevard (e.g., passing the runoff through 
proposed stormwater ponds, relocating the swale, etc.) 

Utility
 While the final sanitary sewer and water main design plans and the proposed municipal 

water main easement location will be submitted and reviewed as part of the future site 
plan submittal, the proposed municipal water main will need to be designed and 
installed following City standards. Work on the municipal water main will need to be 
inspected by City Engineering staff. The developer will need to provide as-built plans for 
the municipal water main. Water main should be centered within proposed municipal 
easement area. The easement area should also include any proposed hydrant locations. 

Fire Department:  

15



 The preliminary location of proposed fire hydrants appears to meet Fire Department needs 
at this time.  Fire lane signs may be required by the hydrants, as well as additional 
information regarding plans for snow storage. 

AT&T:  
 Cabling exists along the north edge of the property.

No other comments from review agencies were received. 

PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria:  Applications for a PUD Master Land Use Plan may 
be approved if the following criteria are met: 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished 
through strict application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based 
on the purpose and intent of this chapter.  
Under the current R-3 zoning, up to 216 units, including in one building, is allowed by 
right on the 8.662 parcel.  The applicant however, is proposing seven buildings with up 
to 94 units total.  The only reason a PUD is required, as opposed to leaving the zoning 
R-3, is to allow multiple buildings on one zoning lot.   

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 
5-300; 
The proposed PUD will comply with the standards of Section 5-300, which are 
established as detailed in Attachment A - PUD Standards to Be Established. 

3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public 
services, facilities, and programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the 
property is developed;  
Utilities including sewer and water service are readily available to serve the property. 
Additionally, the property is located on Route 5 of the Beloit Transit System (BTS), 
which serves the Gateway area.  The property is also within a potential microtransit 
zone that BTS is currently planning.  Microtransit offers flexible, on-demand service 
with dynamic and pooled routing, and can provide first and last mile connections to 
fixed routes, encouraging the use of an existing transit service. Lastly, the property 
connects to a regional bike system.  Transit, bicycle and pedestrian access can help 
address the mobility needs of all residents, including those that might face particular 
challenges when it comes to transportation, tending to rely more on transit, 
carpooling, cycling and walking. 

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and 
objectives contained in the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy 
documents; and  
Available and affordable housing has been identified as one of the most pressing 
issues facing the City, as is the case throughout the country. Likewise, the recently 
adopted Comprehensive Plan, which during its development included several outreach 

16



events and opportunities, has underscored the need and desire for a mix of housing 
types and affordability levels for all residents. Many households are cost burdened 
because they spend over 30% of their total income on housing costs. According to the 
HUD 2020 Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS) Data in Beloit, 32% of 
households are cost burdened and 14% spend over 50% of their income on housing. 
This proposed development will help alleviate that burden for Beloit residents and 
families, and provide a safe, clean and affordable housing option. 

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the 
development will promote the general welfare of the community.  
In 2003, the subject parcel was rezoned from M-2, General Manufacturing District, to 
R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential District because the topography of the area 
was deemed inappropriate for industrial development, multi-family residential uses 
were proposed in the Comprehensive Plan for this area, and the R-3 zoning 
classification would create a transitional land use buffer between the single-family 
residential subdivision to the north that was being proposed at the time, and future 
industrial land uses to the south. The property has remained vacant for the past 21 
years, but now, with recommended conditions, the proposed development will 
provide a much needed and desirable housing option for Beloit residents that is 
consistent with sound planning practice. There is a lack of housing in general, and a 
high demand for affordable housing within the City. Multi-family housing at an 
appropriate density such as this, and particularly infill housing where public 
infrastructure already exists, is generally more cost-effective to build per unit 
compared to single-family homes, and as such can be more affordable.  Likewise, 
integrating a mix of housing types, income levels and affordability levels within 
existing and new neighborhoods creates inclusiveness, promotes diversity, fosters 
community stability and enhances economic sustainability.  It helps ensure that all 
residents have equitable access and opportunity to live wherever they may choose.   

Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 

17



1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The subject property is a vacant 8.662-acre parcel located amongst a number of land 
uses including single family residential, multi-family residential, industrial, commercial 
and institutional.  The property has been zoned for multi-family development for more 
than two decades, and is an appropriate site for multi-family development as identified 
in the Comprehensive Plan, which recommends Planned Neighborhood for the subject 
property.  Planned Neighborhood is a carefully planned mix of single dwelling unit 
detached or attached, two-dwelling, multi-dwelling buildings, small scale business, 
community facilities, and parks, recreation, and conservancy uses consistent with 
Traditional Neighborhood Design principles and forms of development. The proposed 
land use is consistent with those allowed in an overall Planned Neighborhood, and 
consistent with the proposed rezoning to PUD.  

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  
The proposed PUD parcel is currently zoned R-3 Low-Density Multi-Family Residential 
District, and is adjacent to remaining R-3 zoning, R-1A, Single Family Residential District, 
and multifamily residential uses to the west zoned PUD, Planned Unit Development.  To 
the south is a vacant parcel zoned M-2, General Manufacturing District in the City of 
Beloit and agricultural land zoned A-E, Exclusive Agricultural District in the Town of 
Turtle.  Gateway Boulevard, which is the primary access for the proposed development 
is functionally classified as a minor arterial.  Multi-family is an appropriate land use 
transition and buffer from Gateway Boulevard and potential industrial uses to the south, 
to single family residences to the north and east.  

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning 
classification.  
Under the current R-3 zoning, one multi-family structure with up to 216 units is allowed 
by right on the 8.662 parcel.  Seven buildings, with up to 94 units is much less than what 
is allowed under the current zoning district.  The only reason a PUD is required, as 
opposed to leaving the zoning R-3, is to allow multiple buildings on one zoning lot, but 
PUD zoning is appropriate for this site to provide flexibility, yet certainty, for a project 
that supports community goals.   

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the 
subject property.  
Although much vacant land remains for additional development surrounding the subject 
property, this general area of the City has seen some significant development in recent 
years, including adjacent multi-family and single-family residential developments, 
industrial developments such as NorthStar, Pratt Industries and Ecolab, and commercial 
development at G·FIVE Brewing Company.  Land along Gateway Boulevard and north of 
the adjacent single-family residences on Eagles Ridge Drive is vacant, but was recently 
rezoned for limited manufacturing uses.  Other vacant land near the proposed 
development is designated as Planned Neighborhood and Business Park uses. Generally, 
this area of the Gateway is a mix of compatible uses, and new multi-family development 

18



on this vacant site will be a positive new investment in this area of the City that will help 
address the overall lack of housing in the community, as well as break down barriers to 
affordable housing. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – PUD MASTER LAND USE PLAN: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the PUD – Master Land 
Use Plan for the property located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive, subject to the following condition: 

1. The proposed PUD will comply with the standards of Section 5-300, which are 
established as detailed in Attachment A - PUD Standards to Be Established. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – ZONING MAP AMENDMENT: 
The  Planning  and  Building  Services  Division  recommends  approval  of  a  Zoning  Map 
Amendment  to  change  the  zoning  district  classification  from  R-3,  Low-Density  Multi-Family 
Residential District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the property located at 3500 
Eagles Ridge Drive. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Attachment A - PUD Standards to Be Established, Zoning Map, Zoning Map 
Amendment Application, PUD Master Land Use Plan Application, Public Notice, Mailing List, 
Ordinance, Applicant Submittal, Neighborhood Meeting Invitation, Written Public Comments      
through 10/2/2024 (last three are new since September 18 packet), Updated Public Notice,       
Updated PUD Master Land Use Plan showing play space, and the TADI Traffic Memorandum. 

19



Attachment A - PUD Standards to Be Established

The PUD Master Land Use Plan for the property located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive shall comply 
with the PUD district standards of Section 5-300 established as follows: 

a. Allowed Uses: Allowed uses for the PUD are a multi-family residential development which 
includes: 

 Three 7,900 square foot buildings (footprint) with a mix of one-, two- and three-
bedroom units 

 Four 6,900 square foot buildings (footprint) with a mix of one-, two- and three-bedroom 
units 

 Community room 
 Fitness center 
 Business center 
 Manager’s office 
 Surface parking and drives 
 Paved terrace/grilling stations 
 Uses considered ancillary to a multi-family development 

b. Density/Intensity and Lot Size:  The overall PUD Master Land Use Plan includes the following 
maximum density/intensity and lot size standards and other site attributes: 

 Overall PUD area: 8.662 acres or 377,317 square feet 
 Total number of units: up to 94   
 Maximum Density: 10.85 units per acre 

Minor dimensional or area changes within 5 percent of those indicated above as approved 
as part of the PUD Master Land Use Plan may be incorporated into Final PUD Plans.  

c. Setbacks: Buildings and other structures located on the periphery of the PUD shall be set 
back a minimum of 30 feet from the PUD district boundary.   

d. Height: The maximum building height is 2 stories and 28’-3”. Minor dimensional changes 
within 5 percent of that indicated above are approved as part of the PUD Master Land Use 
Plan may be incorporated into Final PUD Plans.  

e. Building Coverage: The maximum overall building coverage/footprint is 51,300 square feet.  
Overall building coverage, expressed as a percentage is approximately 13.6 percent.  Minor 
area changes within 5 percent of those indicated above are approved as part of the PUD 
Master Land Use Plan and may be incorporated into Final PUD Plans. 

20



f. Approval Procedures: The PUD is being reviewed under the procedures outlined in Section 
2-400 of the Zoning Ordinance, beginning with review and approval of the Master Land Use 
Plan, followed by a Rezoning to PUD district, and lastly with review and approval of Final 
PUD (site) Plans.  The Master Land Use Plan and Zoning Map Amendment are being 
processed concurrently, however no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until approval 
of a PUD Master Land Use Plan.  Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant shall 
obtain PUD Final Plan/site plan and architectural approval, which shall include a detailed 
review of all site, grading, stormwater management, building, utility, landscape, signage and 
lighting plans.  

g. Roadway Access: Two vehicular access points are required, one from Gateway Boulevard 
and one from Eagles Ridge Drive as generally depicted on the PUD Master Land Use Plan 
with final location and design determined as part of PUD Final Plans and approved by the 
City Engineer.  The access off Eagles Ridge Drive may be temporary until such time a public 
street is constructed off Eagles Ridge Drive, at which time the access drive will be removed 
from Eagles Ridge Drive and connect to the future public street. 

h. Open Space: Section 5-306 of the PUD ordinance requires that at least 15 percent (1.3 
acres) of the gross land area shall be open space. The applicant has roughly 4.7 acres or 54 
percent of the total PUD area planned for open space which currently exceeds the 
minimum requirement. Additionally, a minimum of 3,800 square feet of play space shall be 
provided onsite for children.

i. Preservation of Natural Features:  Mature trees on site (those that measure 6 inches in 
diameter 4 feet above grade) that are healthy and of a desirable species must be preserved 
to the maximum extent possible. Final PUD Plans shall include a plan which shows the 
location, size and variety of all existing mature trees located on the site that are proposed 
to be removed, except trees that are generally considered undesirable such as boxelder, 
buckthorn, black locust, mulberry and others if listed on the plans need not be individually 
shown. 

In addition to the PUD standards established above, the following additional conditions are 
established as part of PUD Master Land Use Plan approval:  

a. Bike and Pedestrian Facilities: In addition to the sidewalks shown on the PUD Master Land 
Use Plan, the applicant shall install a paved pedestrian connection that is a minimum of 5 
feet wide from the southwest corner of Building 2 where the sidewalk in front of Building 2 
heads south, directly to the Gateway multi-use path.  Additionally, the applicant shall install 
a paved pedestrian connection that is a minimum of 5 feet wide east of the grilling station 
to connect directly to the path along Eagles Ridge Drive.  Lastly, the applicant shall provide 
bike racks located on site to adequately serve the seven buildings.  

b. Off-Street Parking:  154 parking stalls shall be provided.   

21



c. Utilities: Pending the actual location of the culvert (whether it is within the Gateway 
Boulevard right-of-way, or if it is located on the property), a municipal easement may be 
required. The culvert location should be shown on the submitted site plan. If the existing 
swale along the south side of the property is altered by the proposed development, the 
stormwater management design will need to include measures to allow flow from lands to 
the east to continue to flow onto and through this property towards Gateway Boulevard 
(e.g. passing the runoff through proposed stormwater ponds, relocating the swale, etc.).  
The proposed municipal water main will need to be designed and installed following City 
standards. Work on the municipal water main will need to be inspected by City Engineering 
staff. The developer will need to provide as-built plans for the municipal water main. Water 
main should be centered within proposed municipal easement area. The easement area 
should also include any proposed hydrant locations. Fire lane signs may be required by the 
hydrants, as well as adequate and approved areas for snow storage. 

d. Signage: Two monument or ground signs up to 32 square feet each side, and one wall blade 
sign that does not exceed the height of the roofline and 30 square feet (total both sides) are 
approved as part of the PUD Master Land Use Plan.    

e. Development Agreement: Prior to issuance of full building permits for this project, the 
applicant shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City of Beloit. The 
Development Agreement shall outline the applicants’ responsibilities with respect to 
relocating, extending, and/or constructing public facilities and infrastructure as necessary to 
accommodate this project.  

f. PUD Amendments and Modifications: Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use 
of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and City Council by amending 
this PUD – Master Land Use Plan.  The Community Development Director may approve 
minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses, or other 
improvements that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City 
of Beloit Municipal Code.  

22



City of Beloit Zoning Map

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



ORDINANCE NO. 3854 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT 

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, 

Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows: 

The following described land is hereby changed from R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential 
District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District: 

PART OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NO. 1579564, RECORDED IN 
VOLUME 25 ON PAGES 393-395 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS OF ROCK COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN, BEING PART OF SW 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 AND PART OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE 
NW 1/4 OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE 4TH P.M., CITY OF 
BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
DOCUMENT NO. 1579564, RECORDED IN VOLUME 25 ON PAGES 393-395 OF CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAPS OF ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN, THENCE NORTH 30°52'47” EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 436.19 FEET ALONG THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GATEWAY 
BOULEVARD; THENCE SOUTH 59°06'49” EAST FOR A DISTANCE 19.99 FEET; THENCE 
47.13 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 30.00 FEET 
AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 75°53'00” EAST A DISTANCE OF 42.43 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 30°52'49” EAST A DISTANCE OF 59.99 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE OF EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE (WATER TOWER ROAD); THENCE SOUTH 
59°07'13” EAST ALONG AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 
50.00 FEET; THENCE 411.53 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 533.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS SOUTH 81°14'21” EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 401.38 FEET; THENCE NORTH 76°38'30” EAST A DISTANCE OF 234.06 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 13°21'28” EAST A DISTANCE OF 178.99 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 74°41'01” 
EAST A DISTANCE OF 155.34 FEET; THENCE NORTH 41°46'04” EAST A DISTANCE OF 78.81 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 48°13'56” EAST A DISTANCE OF 46.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
41°46'04” WEST A DISTANCE OF 100.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01°15'29” WEST A 
DISTANCE OF 156.62 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF AFORESAID LOT 2; THENCE NORTH 
88°46'44” WEST ALONG AFORESAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 1188.87 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 8.662 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. A/K/A 3500 
EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE.  

31



Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and 

publication. 

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2024. 

City Council of the City of Beloit 

________________________________________ 
Kevin D. Leavy, Council President 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Marcy J Granger, City Clerk-Treasurer 

Published this ____ day of _________, 2024 

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2024 

01-611100-5231- 

32



 
 
 

 

PUD AND ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
AND NARRATIVE FOR: 

EAGLES RIDGE APARTMENTS AND FUTURE 
RESIDENTIAL LOTS 

 

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE 
BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

Prepared by 
 
 

 

 

& 
 
 

 

 

 

 

JULY 19, 2024 

REVISED AUGUST 7, 2024 

 

33



 

R.H. Batterman and Co., Inc. in partnership with The Alexander Company are requesting a PUD Master Land Use 
Plan approval and a Zoning Map Amendment for the proposed Eagles Ridge Apartments development located at 
3500 Eagles Ridge Drive in the Gateway Business Park. The site is currently owned by the City of Beloit but will 
be divided into 3 lots and 1 outlot via a Certified Survey Map (CSM) with the proposed PUD Lot 1 purchased by 
The Alexander Company prior to development via the terms awarded in the City’s RFP #2024-01 Gateway Multi-
Family Site. The site is currently zoned R-3, low-density multifamily residential district and the existing parcel is 
approximately 661,394 SF (15.18 Acres). Lot 1 will be approximately 8.66 Acres (377,310 SF) for the PUD 
apartment community area. Lot 2 will be approximately 5.85 Acres (254,970 SF) and will be the remainder of the 
3500 Eagles Ridge Drive parcel that will remain the current zoning of R-3. The developer is also interested in 
purchasing this parcel to create a future residential development with a public roadway separate from the PUD 
proposed for the apartment community. Lot 3 will be approximately 2.03 Acres (88,340 SF), to be retained by the 
City, and will combine the existing 1.46 Acre (63,612 SF) water tower parcel (228210000, 3600 Eagles Ridge 
Drive) with a 0.57 Acre (24,728 SF), 80 foot wide strip of land to the east from the existing (22820100, 3500 
Eagles Ridge Drive) parcel. Outlot 1 will be approximately 0.10 Acres (4,310 SF) for the City to maintain 
ownership and dictate maintenance of the existing neighborhood sign and landscaping at the southeast corner of 
the Gateway Boulevard and Eagles Ridge Drive intersection. 

SCOPE OF PROJECT 
 
The project proposes an apartment community that will consist of 7, two-story modern apartment buildings with a 
mix of unit floor plans consisting of 1 bedroom, 2 bedroom, and 3 bedroom units. Building 2-Amenity will include a 
community room, fitness center, business center, and manager’s office for use by the residents. All units will be 
accessible by individual private entries. The floor plans have been included as Attachment #1. Building 1 will be 
approximately 6,900 SF, Building 2 will be approximately 7,900 SF, Building 3 will be approximately 6,900 SF, 
Building 4 will be approximately 7,900 SF, Building 5 will be approximately 6,900 SF, Building 6 will be 
approximately 7,900 SF, and Building 7 will be approximately 6,900 SF with a total of 51,300 GSF. The 
preliminary plans show 92 apartment units but may be adjusted in final design to a potential of 94 maximum 
apartment units. 
 
The apartment site will include driveways, parking lots for resident and visitor vehicles, sidewalk connections from 
all private apartment unit entrances to the parking lot, Gateway Boulevard path, proposed roadway sidewalk, and 
Eagles Ridge Drive path, and resident paved terrace/grilling stations. 

 
The total proposed area for the apartment community will be approximately 8.66 acres (377,310 square feet). 
 
A PUD Exhibit/site layout plan for the development has been included as Attachment #2. Site rendering and 
building elevation views have been included as Attachment #3. Existing site photos have been included as 
Attachment #4. 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 
 
The Alexander Company has over 40 years of property management experience with proven results from 
managing its own portfolio and others. The Alexander Company currently has 2,000+ units under management 
and are involved in every aspect of managing a property from marketing and leasing, to maintaining compliance 
with affordable housing programs, overseeing market-rate properties, asset management, and preventative 
maintenance. The Alexander Company’s current management portfolio consists of properties spread across eight 
states and includes affordable, senior affordable, mixed-income, market rate, and historic properties. For 
additional information on The Alexander Company’s management portfolio, please visit their website at 
alexandercompany.com.  
 
The proposed project will have on-site management and maintenance staff. Building 2 will include a management 
office to be staffed by a full-time property manager.  

34



 

DENSITY 
 
The maximum density/intensity and lot sizes standards shall be established by City Council at the time of PUD 
Master Land Use Plan approval. For reference, the maximum density (dwelling units per acre) for R-3 Low-
Density Multifamily Residential zoning is 25 units per acre. The proposed maximum apartment units will be 94 
units over approximately 8.66 acres of apartment community area. This results in 11 units per acre, which is less 
than the allowed maximum for R-3 zoning. 

SETBACKS 
 
The minimum setbacks shall be established by City Council at the time of PUD Master Land Use Plan approval. 
Unless otherwise expressly approved during the PUD review and approval process, buildings located on the 
periphery of the PUD must be setback a minimum of 30 feet from the PUD district boundary. The proposed site 
plan will maintain 30-foot setbacks around the apartment community. 

HEIGHT 
 
The maximum building height limit shall be established by City Council at the time of PUD Master Land Use Plan 
approval. The maximum proposed building height will be approximately 28’ 3” from finished grade on the exposed 
ground floor sides of the buildings and 18’ 0” from finished grade on the first floor sides of the buildings. 

BUILDING COVERAGE 
 
The maximum building coverage limit shall be established by City Council at the time of PUD Master Land Use 
Plan approval. The maximum proposed building coverage for the apartment community will be 51,300 GSF. 

SITE APPROVALS 
 
The apartment community development will be submitted for final approval through the City of Beloit Site Plan 
Review Application and will be designed to meet all applicable requirements as outlined in the City of Beloit 
Ordinances and standards established by City Council as part of the PUD process. The site and building design 
plans will also be submitted for all applicable State and Local permits as required. 

PARKING 
 
Occupancy of the proposed apartment community is based on the total number of living units. The maximum 
number of units proposed will be 94 units. Per City of Beloit parking ordinance 8-103, the number of parking stalls 
required for multifamily units is 1.5 stalls per dwelling unit. This totals 141 parking stalls required. In addition, at 
least 5 of the parking stalls provided must be accessible parking stalls with 4 standard-accessible stalls and 1 
van-accessible stall per City of Beloit ordinance 8-111. The site is proposing to provide 154 total parking stalls 
including 7 accessible stalls with 5 standard-accessible stalls and 2 van-accessible stalls. 

ACCESS 
 
Two access points are required for PUD sites per the City of Beloit Ordinance. The proposed access points for 
the site shall be from Gateway Boulevard and from a 30’ access easement on Lot 2 along the proposed future 
public roadway that will connect to Eagles Ridge Drive. A portion of the public roadway or a temporary driveway 
will be constructed as part of the apartment community development to establish the second access and the two 
access points shall be maintained at all times throughout development. 

35



 

OPEN SPACE 
 
The PUD site must maintain fifteen percent (15%) of the gross land area as open space. The total PUD site is 
377,310 SF. The 15% open space requirement equals 56,597 SF. The proposed open space (grassed areas, 
patios, etc.) is approximately 205,000 SF which exceeds the requirement. 

PRESERVATION OF NATURAL FEATURES 
 
Mature trees, vegetative cover, watercourses, and other natural site features must be preserved to the maximum 
extent possible. The majority of the site is currently farmed agricultural field. The existing vegetative berm around 
the perimeter of the site along Gateway will be maintained except for cut throughs for access driveways. The 
existing monument sign and landscaping at the northwest corner of the site (Gateway Boulevard and Eagles 
Ridge Drive intersection) will remain. A natural drainage swale extends across the southern property line from the 
Eagles Ridge development to the east to dual reinforced concrete culvert pipes that cross Gateway Boulevard. 
The natural drainage way may be converted into a storm water retention area from the development but will still 
convey storm water runoff through the site at discharge through the existing Gateway Boulevard cross culverts. 

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 
 
Storm water best management practices and devices (BMPs) will be designed, installed, and maintained in 
accordance with City of Beloit and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources requirements. This site proposes 
retention basins along the southern property line where a natural drainage way already exists. Off-site storm 
water will be safely conveyed through the site and the main discharge point will be the existing dual reinforced 
concrete culvert pipes across Gateway Boulevard. 

SIGNAGE 
 
The maximum signage square footage limit shall be established by City Council at the time of PUD Master Land 
Use Plan approval. Proposed signage for the apartment community will include a monument sign at the Gateway 
Boulevard driveway entrance with 100 square feet maximum area and 6 foot height, two ground signs, one 
located at the southwest corner of Building 2 and one located at the secondary east access driveway, with 50 
square feet maximum area and 4 foot height each, and a building mounted blade type sign at the southwest 
corner of Building 2 with 30 square feet maximum area. These equate to a maximum site sign area of 230 SF. 

LANDSCAPING 
 
At a minimum, landscaping will be provided to meet the City of Beloit Ordinance requirements. The existing 
monument sign and landscaping at the northwest corner of the site (Gateway Boulevard and Eagles Ridge Drive 
intersection) will be retained by the City of Beloit. Additional shade or screening trees may be planted along the 
north property line berm to create an additional buffer between the existing single family homes and the 
apartment community. This will be considered based on public comments or concerns received from homeowners 
during the public hearing, if any. Additionally, an allowance or variance should be considered to allow some of the 
shade trees to be moved to the perimeter berms or proposed greenspace areas that would normally be required 
to be placed directly next to the parking lot or in parking islands. This would relive some of the interior crowding 
and provide more buffer to the exterior of the development. 

LIGHTING 
 
At a minimum, site lighting will be provided to meet the City of Beloit Ordinance requirements. Driveways and 
parking areas will utilize standard pole mounted fixtures. Sidewalks, building entrances, patios, and park areas 
will utilize pole mounted, wall mounted, or bollard fixtures. 

36



 

ATTACHMENT #1 
APARTMENT FLOOR PLANS 

  

37



A2.13

A2.1

A2.1

A2.1

1

4

2

UNIT 4
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 2
1 BED  1 BATH

675 SF

UNIT 3
1 BED  1 BATH

690 SF

4' - 8" 25' - 4" 5' - 3 3/4" 25' - 2" 10' - 10" 25' - 2" 10' - 10" 25' - 2" 5' - 3 3/4" 25' - 4" 4' - 8"

UNIT 6
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 11
1 BED  1 BATH

665 SF

UNIT 12
1 BED  1 BATH

701 SF

167' - 9 1/2"

5
3

' 
- 

3
"UNIT 5

2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 7
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 8
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 

- 
1

0
"

4
' -

 8
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 

- 
1

0
"

4
' -

 8
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

A2.13

A2.1

A2.1

A2.1

1

4

2

UNIT 6
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UTILITY

UNIT 4
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 10
3 BED  2 BATH

TYPE A

1071 SF

FDC

GAS METERS

ELEC. METERS 

& SWITCHGEAR

WS

WH WH

UNIT 5
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 7
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 8
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 1
3 BED  2 BATH

TYPE A

1071 SF

4' - 8" 25' - 4" 5' - 3 3/4" 24' - 11 1/4" 11' - 3 1/2" 24' - 8 1/2" 11' - 3 1/2" 24' - 11 1/4" 5' - 3 3/4" 25' - 4" 4' - 8"

167' - 9 1/2"

18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0" 18' - 0"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

5
' 

- 
1

0
"

4
' -

 8
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

8' - 6"

UTILITY

8' - 6"

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge South Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:03:52 AM

A1.1

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDINGS 1, 3, 5, 7
FLOOR PLANS

NORTH

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.1

1 GROUND FLOOR - OVERALL

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.1

2 1ST FLOOR - OVERALL

38



A2.13

A2.1

A2.1

A2.1

1

4

2

2
" 

/ 
1

2
"

2
" 

/ 
1

2
"

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge South Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:03:52 AM

A1.2

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

ROOF PLAN

NORTH
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.2

1 BUILDINGS 1, 3, 5, 7 ROOF PLAN

39



A2.23

A2.2

1

A2.2 4

A2.2

2

MANAGER'S OFFICE STG. UTILITY

GAS METERS

UNIT 7
1 BED  1 BATH

706 SF

UNIT 8
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 13
1 BED  1 BATH

676 SF

UNIT 10
1 BED  1 BATH

676 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 14
1 BED  1 BATH

607 SF

UNIT 15
1 BED  1 BATH

TYPE A?

676 SF

PARCEL
WAITING

VESTIBULE

BUS. CTR.

CORRIDOR

MECH/IT/JAN

RESTROOM

MAINTENANCE

FITNESS

4' - 8" 24' - 8" 14' - 6 3/4" 16' - 0" 14' - 6 3/4" 11' - 4 1/4" 12' - 2" 11' - 4 1/4" 14' - 6 3/4" 16' - 0" 14' - 6 3/4" 24' - 8" 4' - 8"

22' - 0" 18' - 0" 22' - 0"22' - 0"18' - 0"

183' - 9 1/2"

5
' -

 2
"

4
' -

 8
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

4
' -

 8
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

5
3

' 
- 

3
"

WINDOW WELL WINDOW WELL WINDOW WELLWINDOW WELL

4' - 8" 25' - 4" 15' - 9 1/2" 12' - 2 1/2" 16' - 0" 35' - 9 1/2" 16' - 0" 12' - 2 1/2" 15' - 9 1/2" 25' - 4" 4' - 8"

FITNESS

ELEC. METERS 

& SWITCHGEAR

A2.23

A2.2

1

A2.2 4

A2.2

2

UNIT 5
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

UNIT 6
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

UNIT 8
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 12
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

UNIT 11
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

UNIT 16
3 BED  2 BATH

1160 SF

COMMUNITY ROOM

4' - 8" 25' - 4" 13' - 10 3/4" 16' - 0" 13' - 10 3/4" 12' - 8 1/4" 10' - 10" 12' - 8 1/4" 13' - 10 3/4" 16' - 0" 13' - 10 3/4" 25' - 4" 4' - 8"

22' - 0" 22' - 0" 18' - 0" 22' - 0"22' - 0"18' - 0"

183' - 9 1/2"

5
' 

- 
1

0
"

4
' -

 8
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

4
' -

 8
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

29' - 9 1/2" 16' - 0" 12' - 2 1/2" 16' - 0" 35' - 9 1/2" 16' - 0" 12' - 2 1/2" 16' - 0" 29' - 9 1/2"

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge North Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:04:40 AM

A1.3

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING 2
FLOOR PLANS

NORTH

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.3

1 BUILDING 2 - GROUND FLOOR

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.3

2 BUILDING 2 - 1ST FLOOR

40



A2.33

A2.3

A2.3

A2.3

1

4

2

GAS METERS

ELEC. METERS 

& SWITCHGEAR

UTILITY

UNIT 8
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

583 SF

UNIT 14
1 BED  1 BATH

607 SF

UNIT 15
1 BED  1 BATH

TYPE A?

676 SF

4' - 8" 24' - 8" 14' - 6 3/4" 16' - 0" 14' - 6 3/4" 11' - 4 1/4" 12' - 2" 11' - 4 1/4" 14' - 6 3/4" 16' - 0" 14' - 6 3/4" 24' - 8" 4' - 8"

22' - 0" 22' - 0" 18' - 0" 22' - 0"22' - 0"18' - 0"

183' - 9 1/2"

5
' -

 2
"

4
' -

 8
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

4
' -

 8
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

5
3

' 
- 

3
"

WINDOW WELL WINDOW WELL WINDOW WELLWINDOW WELL

4' - 8" 25' - 4" 15' - 9 1/2" 12' - 2 1/2" 16' - 0" 35' - 9 1/2" 16' - 0" 12' - 2 1/2" 15' - 9 1/2" 25' - 4" 4' - 8"

UNIT 1
1 BED  1 BATH

607 SF

UNIT 2
1 BED  1 BATH

TYPE A?

676 SF

12' - 1 1/8"

UNIT 10
1 BED  1 BATH

676 SF

UNIT 13
1 BED  1 BATH

676 SF

UNIT 7
1 BED  1 BATH

706 SF

UNIT 4
1 BED  1 BATH

676 SF

A2.33

A2.3

A2.3

A2.3

1

4

2

UNIT 5
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

UNIT 6
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

UNIT 8
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 9
2 BED  1.5 BATH

TOWNHOME

547 SF

UNIT 12
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

UNIT 11
1 BED  1 BATH

765 SF

4' - 8" 25' - 4" 13' - 10 3/4" 16' - 0" 13' - 10 3/4" 12' - 8 1/4" 10' - 10" 12' - 8 1/4" 13' - 10 3/4" 16' - 0" 13' - 10 3/4" 25' - 4" 4' - 8"

22' - 0" 22' - 0" 18' - 0"

22' - 0"22' - 0"18' - 0"

183' - 9 1/2"

5
' 

- 
1

0
"

4
' -

 8
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

4
' -

 8
"

1
0

' 
- 

6
"

3
2

' 
- 

3
"

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

WINDOW WELL 

BELOW

29' - 9 1/2" 16' - 0" 12' - 2 1/2" 16' - 0" 35' - 9 1/2" 16' - 0" 12' - 2 1/2" 16' - 0" 29' - 9 1/2"

UNIT 16
3 BED  2 BATH

1160 SF

UNIT 3
3 BED  2 BATH

1160 SF

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge North Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:04:41 AM

A1.4

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDINGS 4 & 6
FLOOR PLANS

NORTH

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.4

1 BUILDINGS 4 & 6 - GROUND FLOOR

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.4

2 BUILDINGS 4 & 6 - 1ST FLOOR

41



A2.33

A2.3

A2.3

A2.3

1

4

2

2
" 

/ 
1

2
"

2
" 

/ 
1

2
"

A2.23

A2.2

1

A2.2 4

A2.2

2

6
" 

/ 
1

2
"

6
" 

/ 
1

2
"

6
" 

/ 
1

2
"

6
" 

/ 
1

2
"

6" / 12"

6" / 12"

6" / 12"6" / 12"6" / 12"

6" / 12"

6" / 12"6" / 12" 6" / 12"6" / 12"

6" / 12"

6" / 12"

6" / 12" 6" / 12" 6" / 12"

6" / 12"

6" / 12" 6" / 12"6" / 12" 6" / 12"

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge North Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:04:41 AM

A1.5

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDINGS 2, 4, 6
ROOF PLAN

NORTH
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A1.5

1 BUILDINGS 2, 4, 6 - ROOF PLAN

42



 

ATTACHMENT #2 
PUD EXHIBIT 

  

43



EAGLES RIDGE DR

GA
TE

W
AY

 B
LV

D

LAND TO BE
RETAINED BY THE
CITY OF BELOIT
AND COMBINED

WITH PARCEL
22821000 (3600
EAGLES RIDGE

DRIVE)
24,728 SF

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W W W
W

W

W W W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWW

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SANSANSAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

STST
ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

W W

<
<

W W<
<

W W

<
<

W W

<
<

<
<

W W

W W

<
<

W W

<
<

SAN

SAN

<
<

<

SAN

<
<

<
<

<
<

SAN

<
<

<
<

<SAN

<<<<

SAN

<

<

W W W W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

)
)

)

)
)

)))

)

)

)
)

)

)

)

)

W
W

W

W

ST

ST

ST

ST

G G G G G

E E E E

G G G G G

E E E E

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

22862005
1595 GATEWAY BLVD

BELOIT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORP 038001258
PO BOX 681

MID AMERICA HOLDINGS LLP

22821000
3600 EAGLES RIDGE DR
CITY OF BELOIT, INC

63,612 SF

BUILDING 2 - AMENITY
+/-7,900 SF

BUILDING 4+/-7,900 SF
BUILDING 6
+/-7,900 SF

BUILDING 1
+/-6,900 SF

BUILDING 3+/-6,900 SF BUILDING 5

+/-6,900 SF
BUILDING 7+/-6,900 SF

22820100
3500 EAGLES RIDGE DR
CITY OF BELOIT, INC

661,394 SF

30
'

PU
D

SE
TB

AC
K

(T
YP

.)

22820015
3505 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
KIEU & BE THI NGUYEN

22820020
3509 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
HEUANE & LAN N LINSON 22820025

3513 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
JOHN A & JOE ANN OWENS

22820030
3517 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
DAVID J & JANA AHLES

22820035
3521 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

TODD OCZUS

22820040
3525 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
DZEMO & AMDIJE IMERI

22820045
3529 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
JOEL B & JEANNE D OTTO

22820050
3533 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

TRAN H DUONG

22820055
3537 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

TODD SANTUCCI

22820060
3541 EAGLES RIDGE

DRIVE
TREVOR C & ELIZABETH

R SANCHEZ

22820065
3545 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

ERIC MCILQUHAM

22820070
3549 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

LUCIO A PEREZ

22820075
3553 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

ENRIQUE F PEREZ

22820080
3557 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

CHINSON SIM

22820085
3561 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

JON & CAROLYN
NOWACZYK

22820090
3565 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
GEORGE STATHOPOULOS

22821220
3569 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

JESSICA TALLMAN

22821215
1720 RAVEN COURT

JENNIFER R BULTMAN

22870005
1601 GATEWAY BOULEVARD

LJG GATEWAY, LLC & JNG GATEWAY, LLC

22870500
1750 GATEWAY BOULEVARD

HAWKS RIDGE APARTMENTS, LLC

22810010
1601 GATEWAY BOULEVARD

CITY OF BELOIT, INC

RESIDENT TERRACE
& GRILLING STATION RESIDENT TERRACE

& GRILLING STATION

STORM WATER BASIN (TYP)

SNOW STORAGE
AREA (TYP)

HARDSCAPING
(FOR SNOW REMOVAL)

EXISTING MONUMENT
SIGN & LANDSCAPING

TYPICAL FOUNDATION
PLANTINGS

LANDSCAPED INTERIOR
ISLAND (TYP)

LOT 1 (PUD)
APARTMENT
COMMUNITY AREA
377,310 SF

PROPOSED MONUMENT SIGN
100 SF (MAX.), 6' TALL

PROPOSED GROUND SIGN
50 SF (MAX.), 4' TALL

PROPOSED BUILDING
MOUNTED BLADE SIGN
30 SF (MAX.), SEE
ELEVATION DRAWING

PROPOSED GROUND SIGN
50 SF (MAX.), 4' TALL

30
' A

CCES
S E

ASE
MEN

T

OUTLOT 1
NEIGHBORHOOD

SIGN (RETAINED BY CITY)
4,310 SF

PUBLIC WATER MAIN
EASEMENT, TO BE

DETERMINED DURING
FINAL DESIGN AND

REVIEWS

LOT 2
FUTURE PUBLIC
ROADWAY AND
RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT
254,970 SF

LOT 3
COMBINED WATER TOWER
AND LANDSCAPING BUFFER

STRIP (RETAINED BY CITY)
88,340 SF

EX
IST

IN
G 

80
' L

AN
DS

CA
PE

 B
UF

FE
R 

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
(T

O
 B

E 
RE

LE
AS

ED
)

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
30

' L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 B

UF
FE

R 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

IS
SU

AN
CE

7/
19

/2
02

4
PU

D
 S

UB
M

IT
TA

L

7/
31

/2
02

4
CS

M
 E

XH
IB

IT

8/
6/

20
24

RE
VI

SE
D

 P
UD

 S
UB

M
IT

TA
L

-
--

--

-
--

--

-
--

--
34

96
9 

- L
IN

EW
O

RK
_P

RE
LIM

 A
N

D 
PU

D.
DW

GNO
TE

: D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

AL
 D

AT
A 

IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
O

BT
AI

N
ED

 B
Y 

SC
AL

IN
G 

AN
Y 

PO
RT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G.

PU
D

 E
XH

IB
IT

EA
GL

ES
 R

ID
GE

 A
PA

RT
M

EN
TS

35
00

 E
AG

LE
S 

RI
D

GE
 D

RI
VE

CI
TY

 O
F 

BE
LO

IT
RO

CK
 C

O
UN

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

SHEET NO.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

1 OF 1

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y:

LH

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y:

--
--

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 B

Y:
--

--LH

34
96

9

N

0 30 60 120

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

   
   

-  
   

  N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

  8
/6

/2
02

4 
2:

37
 P

M

LEGEND

en
gi

ne
er

s 
 s

ur
ve

yo
rs

  p
la

nn
er

s

28
57

 B
ar

te
lls

 D
riv

e
Be

lo
it,

 W
I 5

35
11

(6
08

) 3
65

-4
46

4

19
 N

. H
ig

h 
St

re
et

Ja
ne

sv
ill

e,
 W

I 5
35

48
(6

08
) 7

43
-9

35
0

10
40

 N
. W

isc
on

sin
 S

t.
El

kh
or

n,
 W

I 5
31

21
(2

62
) 3

79
-2

25
0

w
w

w
.rh

ba
tte

rm
an

.co
m

NOTES

· ZONING: EXISTING = R-3, PROPOSED = PUD
· LOT 1 (PUD) PROPOSED APARTMENT COMMUNITY AREA = 377,310 SF (8.66 AC)
· 15% OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENT = 56,597 SF
        OUTDOOR OPEN SPACE PROVIDED = 205,000 SF
· MAXIMUM DENSITY (DWELLING UNITS/ACRE) FOR R-3 ZONING IS 25 UNITS/ACRE.

PROPOSED MAXIMUM APARTMENT UNITS = 94 OVER 8.66 ACRES OF APARTMENT
AREA = 11 UNITS/ACRE, WHICH IS LESS THAN THE ALLOWED MAXIMUM.

LOT 1 (PUD) APARTMENT COMMUNITY AREA

LOT 2 FUTURE RESIDENTIAL LOTS AREA

OUTLOT 1 NEIGHBORHOOD SIGN AREA

LOT 3 COMBINED WATER TOWER AREA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - LOT 1 (PUD PARCEL)

Part of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 1579564, recorded in Volume 25 on Pages 393-395 of Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, Wisconsin,
being part of SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 and part of the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 28, Township 1 North, Range 13 East of the 4th P.M., City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 1579564, recorded in Volume 25 on Pages 393-395 of Certified Survey
Maps of Rock County, Wisconsin, thence North 30°52'47” East a distance of 436.19 feet along the Easterly right-of-way line of Gateway Boulevard; thence
South 59°06'49” East for a distance 19.99 feet; thence 47.13 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 30.00 feet and a chord which bears North
75°53'00” East a distance of 42.43 feet; thence North 30°52'49” East a distance of 59.99 feet to the Southerly right-of-way line of Eagles Ridge Drive (Water
Tower Road); thence South 59°07'13” East along aforesaid Southerly right of way line a distance of 50.00 feet; thence 411.53 feet along the arc of a curve to
the left having a radius of 533.00 feet and a chord which bears South 81°14'21” East a distance of 401.38 feet; thence North 76°38'30” East a distance of 234.06
feet; thence South 13°21'28” East a distance of 178.99 feet; thence South 74°41'01” East a distance of 155.34 feet; thence North 41°46'04” East a distance of
78.81 feet; thence South 48°13'56” East a distance of 46.50 feet; thence South 41°46'04” West a distance of 100.00 feet; thence South 01°15'29” West a
distance of 156.62 feet to the South line of aforesaid Lot 2; thence North 88°46'44” West along aforesaid South line a distance of 1188.87 feet to the point of
beginning. Containing 8.662 acres of land, more or less.

44



 

ATTACHMENT #3 
BUILDING ELEVATION VIEWS AND 

SITE RENDERING 
  

45



1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

1
7

' 
- 

1
1

"

2
8

' 
- 

2
"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

8
' 

- 
1

 1
/8

"
1

0
' 

- 
3

"

2
8

' 
- 

2
"

1
7

' 
- 

1
1

"

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge South Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:04:04 AM

A2.1

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDINGS 1, 3, 5, 7
ELEVATIONS

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.1

1 BUILDINGS 1, 3, 5, 7 - NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.1

2 BUILDINGS 1, 3, 5, 7 - SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.1

3 BUILDINGS 1, 3, 5, 7 - EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.1

4 BUILDINGS 1, 3, 5, 7 - WEST ELEVATION

46



1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

2
8

' 
- 

3
"

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

2
8

' 
- 

3
"

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

BUILDING MOUNTED BLADE 

SIGN (30 S.F.)

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge North Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:58:19 AM

A2.2

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING 2
ELEVATIONS

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.2

1 BUILDING 2 - NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.2

2 BUILDING 2 - SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.2

3 BUILDING 2 - EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.2

4 BUILDING 2 - WEST ELEVATION

47



1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

2
8

' 
- 

3
"

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

ROOF BEARING
108' - 1 1/8"

GROUND FLOOR
89' - 9"

2
8

' 
- 

3
"

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

2450 Rimrock Road

Suite 100

Madison, WI  53713

Telephone: 608-258-5580

Fax: 608-258-5599

www.alexandercompany.com

PROJECT #

DRAWN: APPR:

C:\TempRevit\Eagles Ridge North Bldg_v23_TAC_dz.rvt7/18/2024 10:05:09 AM

A2.3

24-818

3500 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
BELOIT, WI  53511

EAGLES RIDGE

APARTMENTS

DZ CDQ

PUD EXHIBIT
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDINGS 4 & 6
ELEVATIONS

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.3

1 BUILDINGS 4 & 6 - NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.3

2 BUILDINGS 4 & 6 - SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.3

3 BUILDINGS 4 & 6 - EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"A2.3

4 BUILDINGS 4 & 6 - WEST ELEVATION

48



49



 

ATTACHMENT #4 
EXISTING SITE PHOTOS 

 

50



 
Figure 1: Looking East at southwest corner of site (4/10/2024) 

 
Figure 2: Looking Northeast at west side of site (4/10/2024) 

51



 

Figure 3: Looking Southeast at Northwest side of site (existing monument sign and landscaping) (4/10/2024) 

 

Figure 4: Looking East at Northwest side of site (4/10/2024) 

52



 

Figure 5: Looking South at Northwest side of site (4/10/2024) 

 
Figure 6: Looking Southeast at Northwest side of site (4/10/2024) 

53



 
Figure 7: Looking East at Northwest side of site (4/10/2024) 

 

Figure 8: Looking West at North side of site (4/10/2024) 

54



 

Figure 9: Looking Southwest at North side of site (4/10/2024) 

 

Figure 10: Looking Southeast at North side of site (4/10/2024) 

 

55



 

Figure 11: Looking East at North side of site (4/10/2024) 

 

Figure 12: Looking West at North side of site (4/10/2024) 

56



 

Figure 13: Looking Southeast at North side of site (4/10/2024) 

 

Figure 14: Looking West at Northeast side of site (4/10/2024) 

57



 
Figure 15: Looking West at Northeast side of site (4/10/2024) 

 
Figure 16: Looking South at Northeast side of site (4/10/2024) 

58



 
Figure 17: Looking North at Southeast side of site (4/10/2024) 

 
Figure 18: Looking West at Southeast side of site (4/10/2024) 

59



 
Figure 19: Looking Northeast at Southeast side of site (4/10/2024) 

 
Figure 20: Looking East at Southeast side of site (4/10/2024) 

60



real estate development + property management 
alexandercompany.com

You’re invited!

September 11, 2024 at 5:30pm

G·FIVE Brewery Company
1895 Gateway Blvd., Beloit

In an effort to address a shortage of quality, multi-family housing the City of 
Beloit seeks to redevelop approximately 15 acres in the Gateway Business Park. 
In a public, competitive proposal process, the City has selected the Madison-
based Alexander Company to lead the creation of this new community.

The Alexander Company is holding an informational neighborhood meeting to 
introduce themselves to the community and answer any questions. 

Please find additional information enclosed. We look forward to meeting you!

Eagles Ridge 
Neighborhood Meeting

Join
us!

61



real estate development + property management 
alexandercompany.com

WHAT DOES THE PROJECT ENTAIL?

• Public-private partnership with the City of Beloit

• Mixed-income workforce housing serving households who earn up to a 
maximum of $63,070 per year

• Townhome-style apartments with private walk-up entries

• For-sale housing catered to maintaining affordability

• Community amenities for all interests and age levels

• Full-time on-site management and maintenance professionals

PROJECT SUMMARY

• Multi-family component: Seven two-story buildings providing a total 
of 92 one-, two-, and three-bedroom apartment homes 

• For-sale component: Five acres for a home ownership product, 
providing 9-12 lots and up to 20 total for-sale products on the site, in 
partnership with a local home builder

• Community amenities: Outdoor lounge and grilling stations, in 
addition to ample green space

• Multi-family amenities: On-site management and maintenance 
professionals, club room, fitness center, tech lounge, private apartment 
entries, in-unit laundry, and high-quality interior finishes

ANTICIPATED PROJECT TIMELINE

• August 2024 - April 2025: Predevelopment activities including 
architectural design, coordinating financing and entitlements, etc.

• April 2025: Construction commencement

• August 2026: Construction completion

PROJECT PARTNERS

• City of Beloit: current owner, project partner

• The Alexander Company: developer, architect, property manager

• R.H. Batterman: engineer

• Additional local partners such as a general contractor will be identified 
as planning progresses

With over 40 years of 
experience in real estate 
development, particularly 
in workforce housing, 
The Alexander Company 
stands out for its elevated 
design standards, on-site 
management presence, and 
history of success in working 
with municipalities to create 
thriving and sustainable 
housing communities.

Our approach combines 
market-driven solutions 
with a commitment to 
community. Our goals are 
simple yet steadfast: aid in 
Beloit workforce attraction 
and retention, provide 
high-quality housing, and 
maintain a long-term 
community presence.

It’s more than just a 
building. It’s community.

EAGLES 
RIDGE

Multi-family 
Housing Community at

62



real estate development + property management 
alexandercompany.com

CONTACT
Chris Day, Development Project Manager

The Alexander Company

(608) 268-8105 | cday@alexandercompany.com

Sample Imagery
REPRESENTATIVE

63



real estate development + property management 
alexandercompany.com

WILL REZONING MEAN MORE DENSITY?

The proposed housing concept would result in approximately 
eight units per acre, which is three times less than the current R-3 
(Low-Density Multifamily Residential) zoning allowance of up to 25 
units per acre. The purpose of the proposed rezoning to Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) is not to increase density. Instead, 
it’s intended to provide the flexibility needed to create a more 
thoughtfully designed housing community that aligns with Beloit’s 
current and future housing needs.

WHO WILL THE PROPOSED HOUSING SERVE?

Housing is a critical need across the nation, and Beloit is no 
exception. Over the past three years Beloit rents have increased 
by a cumulative 16.5%1, making it increasingly difficult for many 
to find suitable housing. This proposed housing community aims 
to provide appealing, diverse options for a range of residents, 
including seniors, families, young professionals, and individuals.

The proposed housing community will particularly benefit Beloit’s 
largest workforce sectors - manufacturing, trade, transportation 
and utilities, education, and health services. According to the 
2022 Greater Beloit Demand Analysis by the Greater Beloit 
Economic Development Corporation, over 14,000 people work in 
Beloit but live elsewhere. This housing will offer these employees 
the opportunity to live closer to their workplace, helping local 
businesses attract and retain talent.

WHAT IS ‘AFFORDABLE HOUSING’?

Affordable housing is defined as housing that costs less than 30% 
of a household’s income. This standard applies to households 
across all income levels, as everyone has a limit to what they can 
afford. When a household spends more than 30% of its income 
on housing, it is considered “cost burdened,” meaning it may 
struggle to afford other necessities. Households spending more 
than 50% of their income on housing are deemed “severely cost 
burdened,” placing them at high risk of financial instability and 
even homelessness.

In Beloit, 24.6% of renter households are cost burdened, meaning 
they pay over 30% of their income on rent. Additionally, 20.8% of 
renter households are severely cost burdened, spending over 50% 
of their income on rent2. These statistics highlight the critical need 
for affordable housing options in our community.

1 Source: CoStar.
2 Source: American Community Survey and Greater 
 Beloit Housing Demand Analysis.

EAGLES RIDGE

Multi-family 
Housing Community at FAQ

WHAT DOES ‘LOW-INCOME’ MEAN?

Low-income is traditionally defined as earning below 60% of the 
Area Median Income (AMI), which varies depending on the number 
of people in a household. Section 42 Low Income Housing Tax 
Credit developments often designate a portion of their units for 
households earning up to 80% of the AMI, alongside market-rate 
units with no income restrictions.

The proposed housing community will serve those earning up to 
70% of Rock County’s Median Income levels. For example:

70% Rock County Median Income3 

Household Size
Annual Maximum 

Income Limit
Hourly Maximum 

Income Limit

One-Bedroom 
Apartment

$45,500 $21

Two-Bedroom 
Apartment

$54,600 $26

Three-Bedroom 
Apartment

$63,070 $30

In Beloit, many common professions fall within these income 
limitations4, such as:

• Production Associate at Palmer-Donavin, $18.15 per hour

• Assembly/Production/Factory Personnel at Chicago Fittings 
Corporation, $18.45 per hour

• Records Clerk at the City of Beloit, $18.98 per hour

• Warehouse Worker at Amazon Warehouse, $18.50 per hour

• Barista at Blue Collar Coffee, $15.38 per hour

• Home Health Aid at Comfort Keepers, $18 per hour

• Administrative Assistant for Enrollment at Beloit College,  
$23 per hour

The proposed housing community is designed to support these and 
similar members of the workforce, offering them quality housing 
options that are affordable based on their income levels.

3 Source: WHEDA 2024. Maximum income limitations are 
 determined based on 1.5 persons per bedroom.
4 Source: Indeed.com and Ziprecruiter.com

64



real estate development + property management 
alexandercompany.com

WHAT ARE SECTION 42 LOW-INCOME  

HOUSING TAX CREDITS?

The Section 42 Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program is a 
federal initiative, administered by the State of Wisconsin, that 
helps fund the construction and rehabilitation of affordable rental 
housing for low-income residents. Applications for these funds are 
scored based on several factors, including:

• Incomes being served

• Quality of site (access to public transportation and walkability)

• Area needs (low vacancy and high rents and employment 
center by Census tract)

• Other funding sources (local funds)

• Building amenities (energy efficiency, accessibility)

• Quality of the development team

It’s important to note that these developments must go through 
the same City procedures as any other project, including securing 
development, zoning, and building permits, and they are 
required to pay property taxes. Additionally, these projects must 
remain affordable for at least 30 years and are subject to regular 
inspections by the state.

WHAT ARE HOUSING CHOICE  

VOUCHERS (SECTION 8)?

The Housing Choice Vouchers Program, often referred to as 
Section 8, is a federal initiative that helps low-income households 
afford rent by covering a portion of their monthly payments. 
Locally, the program is administered by the Beloit Housing 
Authority.

To qualify for a voucher, a household must have an income below 
50% of the Area Median Income (AMI) and meet specific city 
screening criteria. Once qualified, households are placed on a 
waiting list, and vouchers are awarded through a lottery system.

Recipients of Housing Choice Vouchers are required to contribute 
30% of their household income towards rent, with the voucher 
covering the remaining portion, up to a certain limit. This limit is 
based on the area’s Fair Market Rent, ensuring that rent remains 
affordable while also reflecting local housing costs.

While apartment communities in Wisconsin cannot deny a 
resident housing due to having a Housing Choice Voucher, know 
that the proposed housing community does not contain project-
based vouchers (e.g. vouchers attached to the unit versus person).

EAGLES RIDGE

Multi-family 
Housing Community at FAQ

HOW WILL YOU HANDLE INCREASED TRAFFIC 

AND PEDESTRIAN SAFETY?

Our goal is to ensure that the community remains a safe 
and welcoming place for everyone. The City of Beloit and the 
development team will work closely together to address any 
increased traffic as well as pedestrian safety. This can involve 
conducting traffic studies to assess the potential impact on 
local roads and intersections. Based on those studies, a range 
of measures can be implemented, such as the addition of traffic 
signals or creating designated pedestrian crossings.

The proposed rezoning will generate less traffic than current zoning 
has the potential to create, and the current streets are designed to 
meet the needs of current zoning.

WILL THERE BE ADEQUATE ON-SITE PARKING?

Ensuring adequate parking is a top priority in our planning process. 
We are committed to providing enough parking to meet the needs 
of residents and their guests and parking will be included in rent to 
ensure the provided parking is used to its fullest extent.

To provide context, a recent parking audit of similar existing 
affordable housing communities in and around Madison, located 
in areas comparable to the proposed site, found an average 
parking ratio of 0.9 vehicles per apartment. The proposed housing 
community will be providing 153 parking spaces, or 1.7 spaces per 
apartment home. Further, know that all parking will be contained 
between the apartment buildings so to reduce visibility to neighbors, 
and there is not a convenient parking connection to Eagles Ridge Drive.

HOW MUCH HOUSING DOES BELOIT NEED?

Beloit is currently facing a significant demand for more multi-family 
housing to support both its economic development and growing 
population. The city’s recent economic growth has outpaced 
residential development, leading to a housing shortage, particularly 
in the rental market.

According to CoStar, the Beloit multi-family market is nearly at full 
capacity, with only 0.9% of inventory currently vacant. For context, 
a healthy housing market typically has around 5% of its inventory 
vacant, which allows for greater flexibility and choice for renters.

The 2022 Greater Beloit Housing Demand Analysis Projects that 
approximately 450 new housing units will be needed over the next 
five years to accommodate population growth and to address the 
existing shortfall. This includes a critical need for rental and low-
income housing to ensure that all members of our community have 
access to affordable, quality housing.

65



From: Akhila Sudheer
To: Christensen, Julie; sudheer tekkalakota
Subject: EAGLES RIDGE SUBDIVISION
Date: Friday, August 23, 2024 9:30:26 AM

Dear Julie,

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the
possible re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a
proposal to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning
(Planned Unit Development). I further understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has
requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments targeted for
low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this
property. 

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning. When we purchased
our home, we bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be
developed into low density residential homes. The value and desirability of our home is
influenced by what surrounds us. Developing this parcel as low-income housing would detract
for the desirability of the area and our home values.

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had
no expectation that this was a possibility. Our home buying decision may have been different
had this possibility been known at the time.

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this
development for the following reasons:
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge. This
would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision. Our subdivision has many children and
walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger.
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully
insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today. While we understand that
development will come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature
would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment complexes.
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would
not have such an impact on an existing residential area.  
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our
existing property values.

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City
of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development.

Thank you.

Akhila Raj

66

mailto:akhilagood@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:sudheerdwh@gmail.com


From: Amanda Van Fleet
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Eagle Ridge Apartment Proposals
Date: Saturday, August 17, 2024 11:52:29 AM

Good morning. 
 
My name is Amanda Van Fleet and I live at 3765 Golden Eagle Drive and I am emailing you
today regarding my concerns and disapproval for the possible development of apartments in
my neighborhood. 
 
Have you ever tried to a take left onto Gateway Blvd from Eagles Ridge Drive? Not only do
you have to look at the oncoming traffic from Gateway Blvd, but you also have traffic
incoming and outgoing from 3 apartment entrances. Can you imagine what it will be like
adding seven apartment buildings to this? The traffic issues it will cause? Do you realize how
far you have to pull out onto Gateway avenue when turning left just to see oncoming traffic? I
highly encourage you to try it. Also, the school district of Beloit bus for pick up and drop off
is right across from this turn. The bus stops and turns on its lights and stops traffic in the
morning and in the afternoon on Gateway Blvd. The Beloit School District picks up the kids
from the Gateway apartment buildings on Gateway Blvd not in safe zone. There is no
sidewalks for this kids but only a green grassy area to wait on until the bus arrives. 
 
The area where the proposed apartment buildings are suppose to go currently zones as LDMF.
In order to put the apartment buildings here it would have to rezoned to PUD because of the
number of units that are being proposed. I am against this rezoning. We should use this land
for what it was originally intended to be used for. 
 
I don't want the increased traffic in our neighborhood. We enjoy taking our kids for walks and
our pets without the constant interruption of speeding cars. We have a beautiful park that all
can enjoy, however, with off street parking.
 
I don't think its fair to place apartment buildings in a neighborhood. Our property values will
go down and I know we have some of the highest in Beloit. We have a beautiful neighborhood
as it is with houses currently being built and more roads being added. Why ruin it with seven
apartment buildings? I can think of plenty of open spaces for these apartments in the City of
Beloit. Why not develop more on the undeveloped West side?
 
Do you realize we don't have a working tornado siren in this neighborhood? It hasn't been
working for months. Numerous calls have been made and it still isn't working. Where are the
City's priorities right now? 
 
Our neighborhood is a HOA as you know. We pay a yearly fee so our our neighborhood is
presentable. We have green areas and flowers that are taken care of. We have additional rules
in place besides the ones the city has to keep our neighborhood beautiful so that all can enjoy.
How can you place apartments in a neighborhood that has a HOA in place? How can we
continue to have a clean and peaceful neighborhood with you build 7 apartment buildings in
it? How is it fair to us?
 
Have you seen how the sidewalks are laid out in our neighborhood? Its terrible! I don't know
what engineers were thinking when having one wide sidewalk on Eagles Ridge Drive and it

67

mailto:justno12know@charter.net
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


doesn't even go onto all of the properties. Some properties it just stops and you have to go onto
the road to walk. Some sidewalks are normal size. Many sidewalks don't even go to the edge
of properties. So many properties are missing sidewalks. 
 
I am against the proposed apartment buildings for our neighborhood. It would cause many
traffic issues and congestion to this small neighborhood. There is already so many things to fix
before we even think about this like getting the tornado siren up and working and fixing the
sidewalk issues to for starters.
 
Amanda Van Fleet 
608-290-2260
 
 
 

68



From: Amy Lanphear
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Eagles Ridge: New Property Development
Date: Monday, September 9, 2024 4:06:10 PM

Hi Julie,

I know you have received multiple emails regarding the new affordable housing complex that
is potentially moving forward on Gateway and Eagles Ridge, and I also watched to reach out
to you regarding this potential development. 

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision, and was informed about the possible re-zoning of
land that is within our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive). My understanding is that the
proposal is to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning
(Planned Unit Development). I further understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has
requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments targeted for
low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this
property. 

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning. When I purchased my
home, I bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be developed
into low density residential homes. The value and desirability of our homes is influenced by
what surrounds us. Developing this parcel as low-income housing would detract for the
desirability of the area and our home values.

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had
no expectation that this was a possibility. My home buying decision may have been different
had this possibility been known at the time.

Beyond the expected decline in property values and quality of life, im also concerned about
the following:

-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagles Ridge Dr. This
would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision and parking on the street that we
don'thave room for. Our subdivision has many children and walkers/bikers/runner that this
would endanger.
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be
insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today. While we understand that
development will come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature
would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment complexes.

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal, and I hope the concerns
by the residents of the Eagles Ridge Subdivision will be considered. 

Thank you so much.

Amy Lanphear 
amylan78@gmail.com 
414-313-3138 

69

mailto:amylan78@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:amylan78@gmail.com


3675 Eagles Ridge Dr, Beloit, WI 53511

70



From: Andrew Geiger
To: Christensen, Julie
Cc: Leavy, Kevin; Day, Kevin; Adama, Yusuf; blakelys@beloitwi.gov; Densch, Marty; Forbeck, Nancy
Subject: Eagles Ridge Subdivision Re-Zoning Proposal
Date: Tuesday, August 20, 2024 5:43:12 AM

Dear Julie,

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion
about the possible re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge
Drive) with a proposal to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to
PUD zoning (Planned Unit Development).  I further understand that the Alexander
Company, Inc. has requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of
94 apartments targeted for low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further
single homes or duplexes) on this property. 

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning.  When we
purchased our home, we bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel
would someday be developed into low density residential homes.  The value and
desirability of our home is influenced by what surrounds us.  Developing this parcel as
low-income housing would detract for the desirability of the area and our home
values.

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners
who had no expectation that this was a possibility.  Our home buying decision may
have been different had this possibility been known at the time.

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to
this development for the following reasons:
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge. 
This would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many
children and walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger.
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be
woefully insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand
that development will come, we expected low density residential development, which
by its nature would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment
complexes.
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that
would not have such an impact on an existing residential area.  
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially
erode our existing property values.

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that
the City of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development.

Thank you.

71

mailto:andrewggeiger@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:LeavyK@beloitwi.gov
mailto:DayK@beloitwi.gov
mailto:AdamaY@beloitwi.gov
mailto:blakelys@beloitwi.gov
mailto:DenschM@beloitwi.gov
mailto:ForbeckN@beloitwi.gov


Andrew G. Geiger

72



From: adraffkorn@charter.net
To: Christensen, Julie
Cc: adraffkorn@charter.net
Subject: Proposed re-zoning of land in Eagles Ridge
Date: Sunday, August 25, 2024 11:11:29 AM

Dear Ms. Christensen:
I am writing to strongly object to the City of Beloit re-zoning the land by the water tower in
Eagles Ridge as PUD.  
 
We specifically chose to build our home in this subdivision 8 years ago because it was away
from the city and thus quiet and more pastoral .  If this land is re-zoned, you would be
bringing the city to our doorstep. This would decrease our property values, make it more
crowded and busy (and thus less quiet), increase the traffic and change the character of our
current neighborhood, which we love and is what we signed up for.
 
Please use the land for what it was intended - LDMF- and let us keep our peace and quiet.  I'm
sure there are other areas in Beloit where you could build your complex.  Put yourself in our
shoes.  I bet you'd feel the same way if you lived here.
 
Sincerely,
 
Ann Draffkorn
1745 Golden Eagle Court

73

mailto:adraffkorn@charter.net
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:adraffkorn@charter.net


From: Ashley Simpson
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Eagles Ridge subdivision proposed multi family construction
Date: Tuesday, August 27, 2024 9:41:18 PM

Hello Julie,

It was brought to my attention that I would be able to contact you in order to express my families objection and
concern to the proposed eagles ridge subdivision multi-family construction. Our concerns are that there would be
increased traffic flow and overflow of parking from apartments (as we already have now but will be worse),
increased noise levels and impact to property values. We moved to this particular location two years ago because we
loved the quiet feel and friendly but reserved community vibe. If there is anything else further that we can do to
object to this please let us know.

Thank you,
Ashley & Simpson Family

74

mailto:ashleysimpson820@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


3665 Prairie Falcon Pass
Beloit, WI 53511
 

75



From: Carina Casique
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Eagles Ridge Subdivision
Date: Saturday, August 24, 2024 1:37:08 PM

Hi Julie,

It is my understanding that the City of Beloit is rezoning from a
low-density multi-family to a PUD multi-family section in the Eagles
Ridge subdivision. Many concerns come with this decision. First of
all, this parcel will not be used for the original purpose of
low-density multi-family. Another concern that is already arising and
will be of greater concern is the parking on Eagles Ridge Dr. to
overflow and increased traffic which we are already seeing with the
new additions of homes being built in our subdivision. This proposed
new zoning will also be putting more residents in a smaller parcel and
along with it impact the home values. I am objecting to the rezoning
and have discussed the concerns my family, community, and I have
above.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

Carina and Jesus Casique
3657 Prairie Falcon Pass
Beloit, WI 53511

76

mailto:ccasique31@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Dan Gifford
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Eagles ridge subdivision
Date: Friday, August 16, 2024 7:55:49 PM

Dear Julie,

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the
possible re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a
proposal to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning
(Planned Unit Development). I further understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has
requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments targeted for
low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this
property. 

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning. When we purchased
our home, we bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be
developed into low density residential homes. The value and desirability of our home is
influenced by what surrounds us. Developing this parcel as low-income housing would detract
for the desirability of the area and our home values.

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had
no expectation that this was a possibility. Our home buying decision may have been different
had this possibility been known at the time.

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this
development for the following reasons:
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge. This
would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision. Our subdivision has many children and
walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger.
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully
insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today. While we understand that
development will come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature
would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment complexes.
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would
not have such an impact on an existing residential area.  
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our
existing property values.

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City
of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development.

Thank you

Yahoo Mail: Search, Organize, Conquer

77

mailto:dananddana4ever2004@yahoo.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fmail.onelink.me%2f107872968%3fpid%3dNativePlacement%26c%3dGlobal_Acquisition_YMktg_315_EmailSignatureGrowth_YahooMail%3aSearch%2cOrganize%2cConquer%26af_sub1%3dAcquisition%26af_sub2%3dGlobal_YMktg%26af_sub3%3d%26af_sub4%3d100000945%26af_sub5%3dOrganizeConquer__Static_&c=E,1,WUwx1VDNtebotnqBszkHLr1TG0BiSnzViQel1vpKm0RAwS4e4Si9P2Ch7ks7NJRtX0NsoKVH2N1Lj1KZ6foPs-yBc7jACBzr7RZ_0sjgyO_lCVCs&typo=1


From: gabriela casique
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: eagles ridge construction
Date: Monday, August 19, 2024 5:25:48 PM

Hello
I am sending this email to dispute the rezoning from low density multi-family to PUD
multi-family. Some of the concerns my family has are the increased traffic in the
neighborhood, the parcel of land not being used for the original purpose of low
density multi family, and the parking on Eagles Ridge Dr due to overflow. The new cut
in road on Eagles Ridge Dr will impact the home values, and the driveways for the
single family homes that are being proposed as well as other concerns.  Traffic is
already getting out of control with all the new housing recently.  We object to the
rezoning and voicing the above mentioned concerns of our community. 

Gabriela Casique 
3758 prairie falcon pass 

78

mailto:gabsrn@hotmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


1

Nee, T.J.

From: Jamie Rousseau <rousseaujamie@yahoo.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2024 5:39 PM

To: Planning (WebPage); Christensen, Julie

Cc: Leavy, Kevin; Adama, Yusuf; Blakeley, Sharon; Densch, Marty; Forbeck, Nancy

Subject: Fw: 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive

Dear Julie/To whom else it may concern, 

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the possible re-zoning of land 
that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a proposal to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density 
residential) to PUD zoning (Planned Unit Development).  I further understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has 
requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments targeted for low-income housing (and a 
possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this property.  

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning.  When we purchased our home, we bought so 
with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be developed into low density residential homes.  The 
value and desirability of our home is influenced by what surrounds us.  Developing this parcel as low-income housing 
would detract for the desirability of the area and our home values. 

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had no expectation that this was 
a possibility.  Our home buying decision may have been different had this possibility been known at the time. 

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this development for the 
following reasons: 
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge.  This would dramatically increase 
traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many children and walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger. 
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully insufficient planned 
parking for the proposal.  
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand that development will come, we 
expected low density residential development, which by its nature would preserve yards and more greenspace versus 
apartment complexes. 
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would not have such an impact on 
an existing residential area.   
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our existing property values.

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City of Beloit decline this 
zoning change and decline this proposed development. 

Thank you. 
Jamie Rousseau 

79



From: Jean Oseth
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Multi-family development in Eagles Ridge Subdivision
Date: Tuesday, August 13, 2024 12:58:57 PM

Ms. Christensen,
We are contacting you to dispute the rezoning from low density multi-family to PUD multi-family in the proposed
development.

Our concerns are:
- increased traffic in the neighborhood
- the parcel of land not being used for the original purpose of low density multi family
- parking on Eagles Ridge Dr due to overflow
- the new cut in road on Eagles Ridge Dr
- impacts to home values
- the driveways for the single family homes that are being proposed

In light of these factors, we respectfully request that you reconsider your plans for this development.

Dean and Jean Oseth
3735 Golden Eagle Drive
Beloit WI 53511

80

mailto:akubastudios@charter.net
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Jenn L
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Planned Unit Development Rezoning
Date: Monday, August 19, 2024 6:41:02 PM

Dear Julie,

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the
possible re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a
proposal to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning
(Planned Unit Development).  I further understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has
requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments targeted for
low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this
property. 

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning.  When we purchased
our home, we bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be
developed into low density residential homes.  The value and desirability of our home is
influenced by what surrounds us.  Developing this parcel as low-income housing would
detract for the desirability of the area and our home values.

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had
no expectation that this was a possibility.  Our home buying decision may have been different
had this possibility been known at the time.

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this
development for the following reasons:
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge.  This
would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many children and
walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger.
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully
insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand that
development will come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature
would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment complexes.
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would
not have such an impact on an existing residential area.  
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our
existing property values.

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City
of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development.

Thank you.
Jennifer Lewandowski

81

mailto:jennstreats2012@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Jenny Gunderson
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Opposition to rezoning Eagles Ridge
Date: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 4:38:57 PM

Good evening Ms.Christensen,

I’m emailing you to express opposition for rezoning the Eagles Ridge subdivision area to PUD
multifamily. 

My husband and I just purchased our home in the Eagles Ridge subdivision and we are
disheartened to hear about the proposed rezoning. We selected our home in this area
specifically for the low density and small community feel. We were looking forward to our
home growing in value, which would be unlikely in the setting of rezoning. 

An additional concern is that there would be increased traffic and overflow of parking onto the
current residential streets. This is troublesome in a community with so many children as
parked cars obstruct the view of children and increased traffic flow can be dangerous to
children playing outside.

We hope you take into consideration our community’s request to not rezone. 

Respectfully, 
Jennifer Gunderson

82

mailto:jenniferglaser13@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Joe Draffkorn
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Objection to affordable housing project
Date: Tuesday, August 13, 2024 11:04:51 AM

Good morning Julie, I’m sending this email to express my concern about the proposed housing project next to the
Eagles ridge subdivision labeled affordable housing. I believe this project is going to reduce the value of our
existing homes. I also believe this project is going to increase traffic and crime to an unacceptable level. I therefore
oppose the rezoning to pud multifamily from low density multifamily. We are a quiet subdivision on the edge of
Beloit with many families with young children. The extra traffic creates a safety issue. As well to what I believe will
also be increased crime. I’ve lived there for nine years and not once have I seen a squad car patrol through our quiet
neighborhood. thank you for taking the time to read my email and hopefully taking it into consideration.
Sent from my iPhone

83

mailto:jadraffkorn@hotmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Joel Otto
To: Pennington, Drew; COBCAMA; Christensen, Julie; Downing, Teri; Nee, T.J.; Rottmann, Hilary
Subject: Subsidized housing on Eagles Ridge
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2024 2:41:01 PM

To Drew, Julie, Terri, TJ, Hillary, and the interim city assessor,

I wanted to email and voice my concerns over the proposed subsidized housing apartments
going in on Gateway and Eagles Ridge Dr.

As a homeowner at 3529 Eagles Ridge, directly across the street from this development, I
have multiple concerns that I wanted to voice in this way to start.  I plan on attending all future
meetings on this subject as well.

I first heard of the plan at the breakfast sponsored by the chamber on development in the
city last month.  Drew was one of the speakers at this event. To hear that the city thinks this
plan to put subsidized housing in the middle and next door to one of the best housing
developments in the city is a great idea and a great place to put such a development really
surprised me.  I understand the need for affordable housing, lower cost rental housing.  But I
really don't think it's good planning to put that kind of housing right in the middle of a
development that has shown the kind of growth that the Eagles Ridge development has in
ownership of homes that are considerably above even the median home price for the Beloit
market.

To add such a development there does require rezoning to go forward.  I think this move is
really inconsiderate and short sighted for all who have built and now own homes in our
neighborhood. 

We bought and built in that area precisely because we were told there couldn't be anything
commercial there, and there couldn't be anything apartments there.

If that land you will be using would have been zoned for low income subsidized housing,
many of us never would have chosen to buy or build there.  Bringing this development to this
location WILL slow down development in Eagles Ridge because people considering moving
in or buying one of the new houses there will think twice or probably not purchase or choose
to build there.  For the developer, I can't believe they would be happy about it either for their
plans going forward.  And the timing of this coming out when it sounds like it is all arranged
for and already a done deal is really poor leadership in my opinion.

After just slapping us with a huge assessment increase and a new one this year, are you
prepared to lower the assessments of properties there in the future, to reflect the impact on our
property values this development will cause?

There are many other potential locations for a development like this that fit better than putting
it in one of the prime home ownership developments in the city.

I would like to ask that the city reevaluate and reconsider the decision to put this property in
this location.  Why not put it down gateway next to all the other apartments, on the big hill of
a lot that nobody else seems to want to develop?
The land you are taking away from its zoning also fits for potential starter home level of

84

mailto:jottomatic319@gmail.com
mailto:PenningtonD@beloitwi.gov
mailto:COBCAMA@beloitwi.gov
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:DowningT@beloitwi.gov
mailto:NeeT@beloitwi.gov
mailto:RottmannH@beloitwi.gov


pricing, if you keep it zoned for condo's and maybe at most a duplex or 4 unit here or there.

I also happened to have lunch with a friend of mine who is a business owner and on the beloit
development advisory board.  When I brought up the project, he hadn't heard anything about it
and he agreed with me that it was a short sighted and horrible location and idea for a project
like this.

Finally, I will be reaching out to the builder who is continuing to develop Eagles Ridge, and I
will be reaching out to our HOA to discuss seeking legal counsel and representation of our
development in this matter.

Please take some steps to reconsider the location of this development, and reconsider the plan. 
Please take into account and look at ALL available locations for this development (of which I
believe there are many).

Think about the implications on tax revenues.  You are giving up a potential property taxes a
good number of home owners in the area you are putting this apartment complex.
You also will be lowering the tax revenues from existing Eagles Ridge homes and future
homes by decreasing their value. 

I have thoroughly enjoyed my 20 years here in Beloit, in our dream house we built from the
ground up on Eagles Ridge Drive.  To have something like this happen at this point is pretty
devastating for us.  Other than high property taxes, we have enjoyed our time in Beloit.  But
decisions like this make us question wanting to stay here and continue to be a part of Beloit.

Sincerely, 

Joel and Jeanne Otto
3529 Eagles Ridge Dr.
Beloit, WI 53511
608-449-3321 is my cell if you would like to discuss any of this with me.

85



From: Katherine Geiger
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Concerned Resident
Date: Sunday, August 25, 2024 3:53:49 PM

Dear Julie,
 
I am writing to you as a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision. I am aware that there is
discussion about the possible re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500
Eagles Ridge Drive) with a proposal to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density
residential) to PUD zoning (Planned Unit Development).  I understand that the
Alexander Company, Inc. has requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the
development of 94 apartments targeted for affordable housing (and a possible
addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this property. 
 
I want to convey that I am NOT in support of this re-zoning. I understand there is a
need for more housing in Beloit, but I feel the location is not ideal for affordable
housing. In my career, I have personally worked with individuals who lived in
affordable housing and can tell you location is crucial especially for individuals who
don’t own/cannot afford a vehicle. While I am aware that city transit runs through the
area, it is not always conveniently accessible for when someone needs to go clear
across town for their necessities. Even though there are restaurants and shops close,
they may not have all necessities a person needs that may be located further away.
There are better locations within Beloit that are much more accessible for those who
would rely on public transit. 
 
Likewise, when we purchased our home, we bought with the understanding that the
subject parcel would someday be developed into low density residential homes.  The
value and desirability of our home is influenced by what surrounds us. Developing this
parcel as affordable income housing would detract from the desirability of the area
and our home values. Therefore, many Eagles Ridge residents feel they will have to
put up their home for sale to find an area they feel is safer for their families.   
 
Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners
who had no expectation that this was a possibility.  Our home buying decision may
have been different had this possibility been known at the time. Our family may have
no choice but to leave the area if this proposal is to move forward as we originally
moved here to get away from the noise, traffic, and crime where we were previously
living.  
 
Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to
this development for the following reasons:
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge. 
This would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many
children and walkers/bikers/runners that this would endanger.
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be
woefully insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand

86

mailto:katbrubaker@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


that development will come, we expected low density residential development, which
by its nature would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment
complexes.
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that
would not have such an impact on an existing residential area.  
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially
erode our existing property values.
 
Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that
the City of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development.
 
Best Regards,

Katherine
 
 

87



From: Kristin Robertson
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Proposed multi family housing in Eagles Ridge Subdivision
Date: Friday, August 16, 2024 10:29:18 AM

Hi Julie,

I live in Eagles Ridge Subdivision and have concerns over the proposed multi family housing
at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive. 

I object to the rezoning of the land from Low Density Multi-family to PUD Multi-family. This
goes against why we purchased a home in this Subdivision and will impact the future value of
the homes here. Other major impacts and concerns are the increased traffic in our
neighborhood with only one entrance in and out of the subdivision. Overflow parking that
could occur from the apartments on to the road and the new cut in road that is being proposed
off of Eagles Ridge Dr. 

The property should remain zoned as low density multi-family as that is better suited housing
for this neighborhood and the homes currently here.

Thank you for your time,
Kristin Robertson 

88

mailto:kmessman10@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Lori Sciame
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Proposed Construction in Eagle"s Ridge
Date: Tuesday, August 20, 2024 6:03:39 AM

Hello, Ms. Christensen.

Please DO NOT rezone the land by the water tower in Eagle's Ridge.

I bought my home  in this lovely subdivision one year ago. One of the reasons I chose Eagle's
Ridge concerned the peaceful vibe of the neighborhood. I actually decided to spend more
money on a home to be away from a densely populated area.

I have talked to many of my neighbors, and ALL of them oppose the addition of a PUD.
Condos are fine, but bringing a huge number of people into this area will lower our property
values, as well as cause safety concerns. 

My husband, a long time COB Police Department employee, has reached out several times to
City Council members to discuss his concerns. None of his attempts to reach the members has
been successful. It is my understanding that Council members should respond to the
community?

I understand that economic development is necessary, as is affordable housing;however, this is
NOT the area to bring many low income families. These families/parents/singles need to be
CLOSE to shopping, health care, schools, and the like. High density housing needs to be in
town, so that services can be accessed easily.

Thank you for all you do to improve the lives of residents, and for reading my email. Please
reconsider rezoning Eagle's Ridge.

Sincerely,
Lori A. Sciame
3660 Eagle's Ride Drive
Beloit

89

mailto:lori.sciame@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Marc Anderson
To: Christensen, Julie
Cc: Tim Gagliano-Anderson
Subject: Eagles Ridge Development
Date: Tuesday, September 3, 2024 5:10:37 PM

Dear Julie,

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the
possible re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a
proposal to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning
(Planned Unit Development).  I further understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has
requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments targeted for
low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this
property. 

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning.  When we purchased
our home, we bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be
developed into low density residential homes.  The value and desirability of our home is
influenced by what surrounds us.  Developing this parcel as low-income housing would
detract for the desirability of the area and our home values.

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had
no expectation that this was a possibility.  Our home buying decision may have been different
had this possibility been known at the time.

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this
development for the following reasons:
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge.  This
would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many children and
walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger.
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully
insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand that
development will come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature
would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment complexes.
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would
not have such an impact on an existing residential area.  
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our
existing property values.

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City
of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development.

Thank you.

-- 

Marc and Tim Anderson
marc.a.anderson@gmail.com

90

mailto:marc.a.anderson@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:Emailfortim08@gmail.com
mailto:marc.a.anderson@gmail.com


emailfortim08@gmail.com

91

mailto:emailfortim08@gmail.com


From: Nathan Bulger
To: Christensen, Julie; Honey
Subject: Rezoning concerns
Date: Sunday, August 25, 2024 6:39:43 PM

Julie,

My name is Nathan Bulger along with my wife Maricel Bulger and we live at 3700 Eagles
Ridge Dr, Beloit, WI 53511.

We wanted to express our concern about the proposed zoning changes for the land at the
intersection of Gateway Boulevard and Eagles Ridge Drive in Beloit that we believe will
greatly affect our neighborhood.   As we understand it, that area is currently zoned Low
Density Multi-family and the desire is for it to change to Planned Unit Development. 

We previously lived in the 2600 Block of Colley Road and moved away from there to get
away from some of the issues that are now being proposed to bring to our new neighborhood.

Here are some of the concerns that we do have.  

Increased traffic to our neighborhood.

Increased noise and safety concerns.

Need for a stronger police presence in our neighborhood in one of the few neighborhoods in
Beloit where it is not currently an issue and given this area's distance from any of the fire
stations in Beloit we do not believe is a wise decision.

The proposed units that we did see do not have enough parking to accommodate a realistic
amount of vehicles for that large of community so where will those vehicles end up.

Please let us know if there anything that we can do to prevent these changes to the zoning
from happening.

Thank you for considering our concerns.

Sincerely,
Nathan and Maricel Bulger
Nathan:608-436-7217
ndb.natbu@gmail.com
Maricel: 608-201-7686
mariceld03@yahoo.com

92

mailto:ndb.natbu@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:mariceld03@yahoo.com
mailto:ndb.natbu@gmail.com
mailto:mariceld03@yahoo.com


From: Ann Van Fleet
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Rezoning Eagles Ridge
Date: Monday, August 19, 2024 12:51:32 PM

Julie,
I’m very concerned about the rezoning of Eagles Ridge Subdivision. 

The impact on my property value and that of my neighbors is very concerning. We are trying to maintain a great
neighborhood where people can have the home they have dreamed about and have worked hard for. 

Low-income housing and larger developments are a big concern as it will drive our value down. 

The new road proposed off of Eagles Ridge would be a big concern as well.   Higher traffic and noise is a big issue. 
Right now we have a quiet neighborhood and I would like to keep it that way.   It is what has attracted buyers to the
houses that are being built.  If that changes then so do the dynamics that would attract future buyers

 I stand with my neighbors and am against this proposed zoning for a  Planned Unit development.

Priscilla Burk
3680 Golden Eagle Dr.
Beloit, WI

Sent from my iPad

93

mailto:annkwilt@yahoo.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Rob Horn
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Multi Family Housing at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive
Date: Friday, September 6, 2024 9:56:47 AM

Hi Julie,

I live in Eagles Ridge Subdivision and have concerns over the proposed multi family housing
at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive.

I object to the rezoning of the land from Low Density Multi-family to PUD Multi-family. This
goes against why we purchased a home in this Subdivision and will impact the future value of
the homes here. Other major impacts and concerns are the increased traffic in our
neighborhood with only one entrance in and out of the subdivision. Overflow parking that
could occur from the apartments onto the road and the new cut in road that is being proposed
off of Eagles Ridge Dr.

The property should remain zoned as low density multi-family as that is better suited housing
for this neighborhood and the homes currently here.

Thank you for your time,

Rob

94

mailto:robert.horn85@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Robert Derrick
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Objection to re-zoning of land by Gateway Blvd and Eagles Ridge Drive
Date: Wednesday, August 21, 2024 10:41:20 AM

Hello,

I am writing to object to the re-zoning of the land by Gateway Blvd and Eagles Ridge Drive from Low Density
Multi-family to Planned Unit Development.

I own a home and live in the Eagles Ridge Drive neighborhood and I have concerns about the re-zoning to
accommodate a higher number of apartment units.
These safety concerns include increased traffic and noise in the neighborhood, overflow of parking from the
apartments to Eagles Ridge Drive, and the addition of the proposed road off of Eagles Ridge Drive.
I am also concerned about our property values decreasing because of added apartments.

Thanks for your time and consideration,

Robert W. Derrick
3690 Eagles Ridge Drive
Beloit, WI 53511
414-467-5580

95

mailto:rderrick1@charter.net
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Ryan Koehn
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Eagle"s Ridge Development - Opposition to Rezoning
Date: Monday, August 19, 2024 9:11:30 AM

To whom it may concern -

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the
possible re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a proposal
to rezone from current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning (Planned Unit
Development).  I further understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has requested $3
million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments targeted for low-income
housing (and a possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this property. 

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOTin support of this re-zoning.  When we purchased
our home, we bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel could someday be
developed into low density residential homes.  The value and desirability of our home is
influenced by what surrounds us.  Developing this parcel as low-income housing would detract
for the desirability of the area and our home values.

Changing the zoning of this land is a deceptive plan in bad faith for all of us existing
homeowners who had no expectation that this was a possibility.  Our home buying decision
may have been different had this possibility been known at the time.

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this
development for the following reasons:
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge.  This
would dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many children and
walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger.
-The city still has yet to complete the sidewalks required for the housing built over 8 years
ago, which is already an accessibility liability for the city. There is little confidence the city will
carry through in the support required for additional development. 
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully
insufficient planned parking for the proposal. 
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand that
development will come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature
would preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment complexes.
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would
not have such an impact on an existing residential area.  
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our
existing property values.

96

mailto:rykoehn@msn.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City
of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development.

Thanks -

Ryan Koehn  
rykoehn@msn.com 

97

mailto:rykoehn@msn.com


1

Nee, T.J.

From: Terri Rousseau <terrirousseau@yahoo.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2024 5:28 PM

To: Planning (WebPage); Christensen, Julie; Leavy, Kevin; Adama, Yusuf; Blakeley, Sharon; 

Densch, Marty; Forbeck, Nancy

Subject: 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive

Dear Julie/To whom else it may concern, 

I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the possible 
re-zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a proposal to rezone from 
current zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning (Planned Unit Development).  I further 
understand that the Alexander Company, Inc. has requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the 
development of 94 apartments targeted for low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further 
single homes or duplexes) on this property.  

I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning.  When we purchased our 
home, we bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be developed into 
low density residential homes.  The value and desirability of our home is influenced by what 
surrounds us.  Developing this parcel as low-income housing would detract for the desirability of the 
area and our home values. 

Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had no 
expectation that this was a possibility.  Our home buying decision may have been different had this 
possibility been known at the time. 

Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this 
development for the following reasons: 
-There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge.  This would 
dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many children and 
walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger. 
-After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully 
insufficient planned parking for the proposal.  
-We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand that 
development will come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature would 
preserve yards and more greenspace versus apartment complexes. 
-There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would not have 
such an impact on an existing residential area.   
-As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our existing 
property values. 

Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City of 
Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed development. 

Thank you. 
Terri Rousseau 

98



From: Terri Rousseau
To: Planning (WebPage); Christensen, Julie; Leavy, Kevin; Adama, Yusuf; Blakeley, Sharon; Densch, Marty; Forbeck,

Nancy
Cc: Gabrielatos, Jerry
Subject: Re: 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2024 6:42:11 PM

To Whom It May Concern,

Wanted to voice more opinion after the G5 meeting last night with the developer
regarding the proposed development at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive. First let me start by
saying the that the meeting was very disappointing. They presented the same
information that was supplied on their letter of notice of the meeting with no new
information and they did not have a representee onsite that could actually answer any
questions. If a question was even attempted to be answered it was nothing but smoke
and mirrors. They were there to "sell" a product not because they were concerned
with how current residents feel or our concerns.  I also got the same feeling from the
city employees that were there. We as residents have valid concerns that we need a
true ear to listen to. Maybe city council, planning commission, city leaders should
consider a meeting with the residents outside of the two council meetings that are on
the schedule. More of a one on one so to speak.

WE are your residents. WE are your tax payers.

I have significant concerns regarding both the development itself and its potential
impact on on the well-being and amenity of the surrounding area, including my own
home and those of other residents. I have outlined just some of those in the following
objection letter. 

1. Increased noise from increased vehicle traffic, car doors and increased pedestrian
traffic in and out of the parking lot of all hours. Gatherings in the outdoor common
areas. Increased noise from proposed dog area.

2. The privacy of existing properties as the development will overshadow and
overlook existing properties and obstruct views particularly residents on Hawks Pass.

3. Hawks Pass residents will have a barrel view of the parking lot from properties and
backs of homes, including their backyards and decks/patios.

4. This does not ascetically keep up with the single family homes of the subdivision
HOA.

5. Traffic and congestion are already a concern in the area. Our subdivision is
growing and will continue to grow and will be 2-3 times if not bigger than it already is.
Has that been taken into consideration? Has where those residents will park when the
parking lot needs to be plowed been taken into consideration? Will it be on Eagles
Ridge causing even more congestion? Has where the guest of the tenants are going
to park been taken into consideration? Will that also be on Eagles Ridge causing
even more congestion? All of this will cause significant congestion, compromising

99

mailto:terrirousseau@yahoo.com
mailto:Planning@beloitwi.gov
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:LeavyK@beloitwi.gov
mailto:AdamaY@beloitwi.gov
mailto:BlakeleyS@beloitwi.gov
mailto:DenschM@beloitwi.gov
mailto:ForbeckN@beloitwi.gov
mailto:ForbeckN@beloitwi.gov
mailto:GabrielatosJ@beloitwi.gov


both the amenity and safety of current and future subdivision vehicle and pedestrian
traffic.

7. Our home values will decrease. Will the city then decrease our taxes? We live and
are willing to pay the taxes we do to have the peace and well-being that we are
accustom to. If this development is put in place, our home values drop, current
residents will sell out at lower prices, the builder of the subdivision will ultimately need
to drop new build prices and then maybe stop the build altogether because the
neighborhood would then not justify the prices nor the taxes. Doesn't help the city
more to keep up with current trend in single family homeownership? Or is it just about
the government funds?

8. We pay HOA fees there should be no entrance or exit on Eagles Ridge Drive.

We pay HOA fees we moved to this neighborhood for a reason. We would not have
bought if we knew that this kind of development was basically being thrown in our
backyards. The residents in the neighborhood  pay roughly an average of $4000.00 to
$6000.00 yearly in property taxes and now well we are paying those rates others will
live in the same neighborhood and not have the same burden.

We would like a question answered, why this lot of land? There are other areas well
more suited for this type of development including several  right on Gateway and
even as close as next to the apartment buildings that are already there. Why not
develop on a lot that does not have current HOA subdivision homeowners?   Build on
empty lot and then if someone wants to build single family homes around that at least
those home owners would know this exists and would make the choice to buy or not
instead of insisting on putting this here and forcing this onto the established
neighborhood and homeowners? 

Has the stress that this would put on our already and understaffed schools and
bussing company for the schools been taken into consideration? How about the
overuse of our one small park in the neighborhood? Which also goes along with the
amount of residents just the subdivision alone will have once completed. 

After researching other properties of The Alexander Company there is a consistency
of comments/reviews from current and passed tenants of poor communication from
management, poor management, poor maintenance and  unkempt grounds, parties
and crime. 
Some as simple as management does not show up for a scheduled appointment to
show an apartment. How can a complex like this be properly maintained when they
don't even manage the simple things. Leases and rules only matter if they are
enforced and followed.

I will close by expressing that this development will bring a myriad of negative impacts
that will undoubtedly affect our peace, well-being, and potentially safety. 

100



Thank you
Terri Rousseau

101



From: Terry Gerrits
To: Christensen, Julie
Cc: Leavy, Kevin; Day, Kevin; Adama, Yusuf; Densch, Marty; Forbeck, Nancy; blakelys@beloitwi.gov
Subject: Proposed Rezoning of a Property at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive
Date: Wednesday, August 21, 2024 3:45:53 PM

Dear Ms. Christensen,

My wife and I are residents of Eagles Ridge subdivision. We have been made
aware of a request for rezoning of land that abuts our subdivision, that property
being at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive, from its current zoning of R3 (low density
residential) to PUD zoning (Planned Unit Development).  We further understand that
the purpose for the change in zoning is to facilitate the development of an
apartment complex consisting of 94 units, targeted for low-income housing. 

When we purchased our home, we bought it with the understanding that the subject
parcel would someday be developed into low density multi-family residential
homes. We understand that the proposed plan does call for as many as 18
duplexes, or other low density multi-family properties to be constructed, which we
take no issue with. 

What is of concern to us is that 94 apartments, consisting of 1, 2 and 3 bedroom
units, would mean somewhere in the neighborhood of (pun intended) 150 to 250
additional vehicles travelling the neighborhood via Eagles Ridge Drive once the
apartment building was at full capacity. We see no access to this development off of
Gateway Boulevard on the drawings we have been privy to, which would make
much more sense. We also see no underground parking referenced in the plan. The
parking indicated on these same drawings seems extremely deficient for that vehicle
count. So exactly where are the cars, and the boats and trailers that always seem
to come along with them, supposed to park? Our fear is that it will be on the streets
of the surrounding neighborhoods.

There is, we are told, a proposed new road that would enter into this new complex
off of Eagle Ridge Drive. This too would dramatically increase traffic into our
subdivision. And not just in the vicinity of the development. There is a city park
tucked into the Northeast corner of the current neighborhood off of Golden Eagle
Drive, which already sees significant vehicle traffic from parents bringing their
families in by car from the apartments off of Gateway Boulevard. This park has no
parking lot, so all of these vehicles now park on Golden Eagle Drive. This parking
issue would only be exacerbated by the absence of any planned play areas in the
new apartment complex.

We enjoy the beauty of the green-space that is present in our community today. 
While we understand that development will come, we expected low density
residential development, which by its very nature would provide yards for children to
play in. If this complex is to be approved, consideration for parking and play areas
must be planned as well.

102

mailto:terrygerrits@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:LeavyK@beloitwi.gov
mailto:DayK@beloitwi.gov
mailto:AdamaY@beloitwi.gov
mailto:DenschM@beloitwi.gov
mailto:ForbeckN@beloitwi.gov
mailto:blakelys@beloitwi.gov


Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal. Absent
appropriate revisions to the plan to account for parking and recreation, I would
request that the City of Beloit decline this zoning change and decline this proposed
development.

Thank you for your time and attention to our concerns.

Terry L. Gerrits
3675 Golden Eagle Drive
(608) 444-6107

103



From: LEWANDOWSKI, Tom
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Eagle"s Ridge - Planned unit Development
Date: Tuesday, August 20, 2024 9:04:05 AM

Dear Julie,
 
I am a resident of Eagle's Ridge subdivision and am aware that there is discussion about the possible re-
zoning of land that abuts our subdivision (3500 Eagles Ridge Drive) with a proposal to rezone from current
zoning of R3 (low density residential) to PUD zoning (Planned Unit Development).  I further understand that the
Alexander Company, Inc. has requested $3 million in TIF funds to support the development of 94 apartments
targeted for low-income housing (and a possible addition of 18 further single homes or duplexes) on this
property. 
 
I want to convey that I am absolutely NOT in support of this re-zoning.  When we purchased our home, we
bought so with the understanding that the subject parcel would someday be developed into low density
residential homes.  The value and desirability of our home is influenced by what surrounds us.  Developing this
parcel as low-income housing would detract for the desirability of the area and our home values.
 
Changing the zoning of this land is a "bait and switch" for us existing homeowners who had no expectation
that this was a possibility.  Our home buying decision may have been different had this possibility been known
at the time.
 
Beyond the expected erosion of our property value and quality of life we also object to this development for the
following reasons:

There is a proposed new road that would come into the subdivision on Eagle Ridge.  This would
dramatically increase traffic in our subdivision.  Our subdivision has many children and
walkers/bikers/runner that this would endanger.
After reviewing the proposed plan by the Alexander Company, there appears to be woefully insufficient
planned parking for the proposal. 
We enjoy the beauty of the greenspace that is present today.  While we understand that development will
come, we expected low density residential development, which by its nature would preserve yards and
more greenspace versus apartment complexes.
There are other areas in Beloit that could be developed for low-income housing that would not have such
an impact on an existing residential area.  
As taxpayers, we also object to using $3 million of taxpayer monies that potentially erode our existing
property values.

 
Please consider this input as the City of Beloit reviews this proposal and I request that the City of Beloit decline
this zoning change and decline this proposed development.
 
Thank you.
 
 

 Tom LEWANDOWSKI
Site Buyer
Business Unit - Americas Engine Components
100 Wisconsin Street | Walworth, WI 53184 | UNITED-STATES
tlewandowski@novaresteam.com  | Phone +1 262-275-5791 x5012 | Mobile +1 414-581-9476
www.novaresteam.com

104

mailto:tlewandowski@novaresteam.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.novaresteam.com&c=E,1,Ow41jwSDwGtpvde_jPtvfIQt7vibootu1RLvHll9dUDmVatg3huifPm98R5v3QymE9_vH6TTbVJaMjm8qQYhrg0Ma93y_2E5y5ecbo1MFRPpOQetZ2s,&typo=1
mailto:tlewandowski@novaresteam.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.novaresteam.com&c=E,1,ryppWO3nDsYiFHaCOeurCxwP_mxxL2Xjejg4eWh9svLvwqR_ZvjCoRztn1Q83PM1o-wjGjCAjNkc2Z7tEpUj3bVvmOB1eY7Atwh9GyTOgndE8IYObNJVGaNuUw,,&typo=1&ancr_add=1


From: Tyler Stanek
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Low income housing project eagles ridge
Date: Tuesday, September 17, 2024 5:14:07 PM

Hi my names Tyler Stanek and i recently bought a house in eagles ridge subdivision. I 100% oppose the building of
low income housing across the street from my house. We bought the house in hopes of paying higher taxes to stay
away from the ghetto we moved out of. If low income is put up all it will do is make more traffic in a small
subdivision at higher speeds, more problems, and higher noise levels.
The entrance is being planned to be built across the street from my driveway and thats the main sidewalk path that
the community uses over here. With the low income housing i will not be paying the 4-6k a year in taxes if thats the
case. If im back near the ghetto i will pay the 2200 a year i did on 9th street.
I get semis dropping off packages for work daily and dont want to have porch thefts and higher crime like i had on
9th street. We had car thefts and break ins because of section 8 applicants there. If this is getting pushed through
then i would prefer it down in the vacant lots by the highschool and not near the nice neighborhoods. Think of the
community at some point and not just what tax write off the city can get the most from.

Sent from my iPhone

105

mailto:tylerstanek21@gmail.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov


From: Jensen, Brenda
To: Planning (WebPage)
Subject: RE: The Alexander Company Planned Unit Development at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive - Comments
Date: Wednesday, September 18, 2024 2:59:25 PM

Hello,
 
I received a Notice to the Public handout at my front door concerning the planned development that
is being considered for 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive.  I have a few questions:
 

The notice to the public indicated a comment “see the attached concept plan for details”. 
There was no attachment.  I would like to see a map of the planned development and how
close it is in conjunction with the Eagles Ridge subdivision, an HOA neighborhood.  Could you
please send it to me?
What plans are in place for the increase in environmental noise that will undoubtedly occur
due to a large project such as this?  I expect there to be an increase in noise from vehicles and
from neighbors.
One of the fliers from The Alexander Company noted there would be 100+ parking lot spaces
for all of the planned housing.  What are the city’s plans to handle the increased traffic counts
that will undoubtedly occur from the additional cars/traffic in the area?
The Alexander Company has completed other projects in Wisconsin – one such project is the
Artisan Village.  A google search of this project provided a few concerns/google reviews: 

In one post (3 months ago) it was noted “the material they used to build the project
was cheap”.
Another post mentioned “I had the unfortunate experience of living in this complex and
I can’t stress enough how terrible it was.  Property management was not just
unresponsive, they were dismissive of concerns…people smoking outside of units,
lighting fireworks near cars, other safety concerns which management showed no
interest in addressing these issues…dirty common areas and obnoxious parties
occurring every weekend making it impossible to find any peace and quiet”.
Another google review – “parking is a mess; multiple instances of garbage being
blocked by another vehicle and management doing absolutely nothing.  Office was
constantly closed when they said it would be open”.
And yet another review – “vising family and the first night at this place I heard gunshots
at least 13-15 somewhere.  Anyone shouldn’t be living there especially with kids.”

 
I realize that the city needs additional housing.  I also realize that we need affordable housing.  But I
think there are other areas where that housing could be sourced in the city.  It is my opinion that the
way the property is currently zoned, as R-3 (low density multi-family housing) is correct.  With the
businesses located on this road, having a low-density area for planned housing units is ideal.  If this is
changed to high density, the overcrowding in the area, noise issues, traffic congestion and possible
parking issues all could have a detrimental effect to the area.  I would ask the City of Beloit Planning
Commission to reconsider.
 
Regards,
Brenda Jensen

106

mailto:BJensen3@htlf.com
mailto:Planning@beloitwi.gov


107



108



109



From: Ryan Koehn
To: Christensen, Julie
Subject: Plan Commission Meeting 9/18/2024- 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive Proposed Development
Date: Friday, September 20, 2024 9:26:09 AM
Attachments: Eagles Ridge - missing walkways.pdf

Hi Julie -

First, I'd like to thank you for inviting the neighbors of Eagles Ridge to the Plan Commission
meeting the other night. It was my first time attending anything government related and I was
surprised at what a positive experience it was. I was impressed with the way you ran things
and overall happy with the way arguments were brought and addressed.

I am glad some additional information will be researched such as the traffic and outdoor space
which were some of my (and my neighbors) main concerns. I think this is going in a good
direction. Overall, I do hope for an effective affordable housing solution for the city. And when
considering the current zoning of R3, I am starting to see that the Alexander development is
likely a better outcome than other plausible options that would require less city oversight.

Additionally, some of my concerns include current maintenance and services that should have
been provided by the city for the previous Eagles Ridge developments. I am primarily referring
to walkways that are not yet complete from the first development probably over 10 years ago.
See attached for a plan noting the missing segments. If you could forward this plan along to
the appropriate city department or share their email with me, that would be greatly
appreciated.

Thanks, and I appreciate your help!

Ryan Koehn  
rykoehn@msn.com 

110

mailto:rykoehn@msn.com
mailto:ChristensenJ@beloitwi.gov
mailto:rykoehn@msn.com



RKoehn

PolyLine



RKoehn

Line



RKoehn

PolyLine



RKoehn

PolyLine



RKoehn

PolyLine



RKoehn

Cloud



RKoehn

Cloud



RKoehn

Cloud



RKoehn

Cloud



RKoehn

Callout

NO BIKE PATH...



RKoehn

Callout

NO BIKE PATH...



RKoehn

Callout

NO SIDEWALK...



RKoehn

Callout

NO SIDEWALK...



RKoehn

Callout

FORTHCOMING CONNECTION AT LATEST CONSTRUCTION?



RKoehn

PolyLine







111

RKoehn
PolyLine

RKoehn
Line

RKoehn
PolyLine

RKoehn
PolyLine

RKoehn
PolyLine

RKoehn
Cloud

RKoehn
Cloud

RKoehn
Cloud

RKoehn
Cloud

RKoehn
Callout
NO BIKE PATH...

RKoehn
Callout
NO BIKE PATH...

RKoehn
Callout
NO SIDEWALK...

RKoehn
Callout
NO SIDEWALK...

RKoehn
Callout
FORTHCOMING CONNECTION AT LATEST CONSTRUCTION?

RKoehn
PolyLine



112



113



114



 

  

PROVIDING TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS

Phone: 800.605.3091  P.O. Box 128              www.tadi-us.com	
Cedarburg, WI 53012 

 

  

 
TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:   October 1, 2024 
 
For:	 	 	 Alex J. Feuling, P.E. 
   R H Batterman & Co., Inc. 
    
From:  Tammi Czewski, P.E., PTOE 
   Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc. 
	
Subject:    Trip	Generation	Comparison	&	Sight	Distance	Evaluation	for	the	
	 	 	 Proposed	Multi‐Family	Development	at	3500	Eagles	Ridge	Drive	
	 	 	 	

 
PURPOSE	
This technical memorandum was prepared to show the number of trips expected to be 
generated by different multi-family land uses on the same development site.  The memo 
also includes an estimate of future roadway capacity on Gateway Boulevard with the 
proposed PUD zoning use on site, and an evaluation of sight distance at the Gateway 
Boulevard intersection with Eagles Ridge Drive. 

TRIP	GENERATION	COMPARISON	
The property at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive is an 8.66-acre parcel that is currently zoned R-3, 
which has a maximum dwelling density of 25 units/acre (216 residential units).   The 
zoning is proposed to be changed to a PUD with a maximum of 94 dwelling units (11 
units/acre) across seven two-story buildings (see site plan in Appendix A).  Trip generation 
for these uses are shown in Table 1.   

Note that the trip generation for each land use type was evaluated based on the trip rates 
or fitted curve equations published in the Institute of Transportation Engineer’s (ITE) Trip	
Generation	Manual,	11th	Edition.  The use of trip rates or fitted curve equations is based on 
the procedures set forth in the ITE Trip	Generation	Handbook,	3rd	Edition.   

 

115



   

 

2Trip Generation & Sight Distance Study for 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive, Beloit, Wisconsin 

 

Table 1.  Comparison Trip Generation Table 

 

Based on national trip data published by ITE, the PUD zoning plan (94 affordable housing 
units) for the development site generates 450 trips during a typical weekday, with 45 trips 
in the AM peak hour and 45 trips in the PM peak hour.  The R-3 zoning plan (216 maximum 
multi-family units) generates 1,460 daily trips (224% more), 90 AM peak hour trips (100% 
more), and 115 PM peak hour trips (156% more) than the PUD zoning plan.   

FUTURE	ROAD	CAPACITY	
The Wisconsin Department of Transportation’s (WisDOT) TCMap online shows a 2023 
annual average daily traffic (AADT) volume of 4,100 vehicles per day (vpd) on Gateway 
Boulevard, between Cranston Road and Apex Drive.  Assuming the new daily trips from the 
PUD zoning are split evenly to the north and south, the development would increase trips 
on Gateway Boulevard to about 4,325 vpd.   

Gateway Boulevard has a 4-lane cross-section (19,300 daily traffic capacity) north of Eagles 
Ridge Drive and a 2-lane cross-section (12,400 daily traffic capacity) south of Eagles Ridge 
Drive.  As shown in Table 2, the additional daily traffic from the PUD development has a 
minimal (1-2%) impact to the traffic capacity on Gateway Boulevard. 

Table 2.  Gateway Boulevard Traffic Capacity 

 

SIGHT	DISTANCE	EVALUATION	
Both intersection and stopping sight distance was evaluated at the Gateway Boulevard 
intersection with Eagles Ridge Drive.  Sight distances were calculated in accordance with 
the latest edition of the American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials 
(AASHTO) A	Policy	on	Geometric	Design	of	Highways	and	Streets	and with the latest WisDOT 
FDM design guidelines (Procedure 11-10-5).  Sight distance compliance was evaluated 
using on-line aerial and street-view photography, as well as road profiles from Google 
Earth. 

In Out Total In Out Total
450 15 30 45 25 20 45

(4.81) (29%) (71%) (0.50) (59%) (41%) (0.46)

1,460 20 70 90 70 45 115
FCE (24%) (76%) FCE (63%) (37%) FCE

Land	Use
ITE	
Code Size

Weekday	
Daily

AM	Peak

94 Units

PM	Peak

Affordable Housing (Income 
Limits)

223

Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise)
Existing R-3 Zoning (Max 25u/acre)

220 216 Units

North	(4‐Lane) South	(2‐Lane)
Capacity 19,300 12,400
Existing Traffic 4,100 4,100

% of Capacity 21% 33%
PUD New Trips 225 225
Future Traffic 4,325 4,325

% of Capacity 22% 35%
PUD Impact to Capacity 1% 2%

Gateway	Boulevard

116



   

 

3Trip Generation & Sight Distance Study for 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive, Beloit, Wisconsin 

 

Sight distance requirements for were calculated based on the roadway design speed (45 
mph), geometry (one through lane in each direction and a ~16-foot striped median), and 
design vehicle (passenger car and single-unit truck).  Using Google Earth, plan view/street 
view and profile view evaluations of sight distance were completed.   

The sight distance calculation worksheet and evaluation exhibits for the Gateway 
Boulevard/Eagles Ridge Drive intersection are in Appendix B.  From the plan-view 
evaluation (Exhibit B1), a vehicle positioned on Eagles Ridge Drive, 14.5 feet from the edge 
of Gateway Boulevard has an unobstructed vision triangle to the limits required for both a 
passenger car and a single-unit truck.   

Exhibit B1 also shows street-view photographs of Gateway Boulevard as seen from Eagles 
Ridge Drive.  Looking north, Gateway Boulevard has a downgrade resulting in clear 
visibility for drivers.  Looking south, Gateway Boulevard has a hill which blocks visibility of 
approaching vehicles.   

The profile views of Gateway Boulevard as provided within Google Earth were used to 
evaluate intersection sight distance (Exhibit B2) and stopping sight distance (Exhibit B3) 
for Eagles Ridge Drive.  As shown, design vehicles have clear visibility to the respective 
targets when traveling through the intersection. 

CONCLUSION	
Based on national trip data, a 94-unit multi-family development at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive 
generates daily trips that result in future volumes that are well below the capacity of 
Gateway Boulevard.  The design of the Eagles Ridge Drive/Gateway Boulevard intersection 
meets intersection sight distance requirements for vehicles exiting from Eagles Ridge Drive 
and stopping sight distance requirements for vehicles traveling through on Gateway 
Boulevard.    

 

117



   

 

 

 

 

	
	
	

APPENDIX	A	
	

PUD	SITE	PLAN	
3500	EAGLES	RIDGE	DRIVE	

	 	

118



EAGLES RIDGE DR

GA
TE

W
AY

 B
LV

D

LAND TO BE
RETAINED BY THE
CITY OF BELOIT
AND COMBINED

WITH PARCEL
22821000 (3600
EAGLES RIDGE

DRIVE)
24,728 SF

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W W W
W

W

W W W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWW

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SANSANSAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

STST
ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

W W

<
<

W W<
<

W W

<
<

W W

<
<

<
<

W W

W W

<
<

W W

<
<

SAN

SAN

<
<

<

SAN

<
<

<
<

<
<

SAN

<
<

<
<

<SAN

<<<<

SAN

<

<

W W W W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

)
)

)

)
)

)))

)

)

)
)

)

)

)

)

W
W

W

W

ST

ST

ST

ST

G G G G G

E E E E

G G G G G

E E E E

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

G G G G G

EEEE

22862005
1595 GATEWAY BLVD

BELOIT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORP 038001258
PO BOX 681

MID AMERICA HOLDINGS LLP

22821000
3600 EAGLES RIDGE DR
CITY OF BELOIT, INC

63,612 SF

BUILDING 2 - AMENITY
+/-7,900 SF

BUILDING 4+/-7,900 SF
BUILDING 6
+/-7,900 SF

BUILDING 1
+/-6,900 SF

BUILDING 3+/-6,900 SF BUILDING 5

+/-6,900 SF
BUILDING 7+/-6,900 SF

22820100
3500 EAGLES RIDGE DR
CITY OF BELOIT, INC

661,394 SF

30
'

PU
D

SE
TB

AC
K

(T
YP

.)

22820015
3505 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
KIEU & BE THI NGUYEN

22820020
3509 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
HEUANE & LAN N LINSON 22820025

3513 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
JOHN A & JOE ANN OWENS

22820030
3517 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
DAVID J & JANA AHLES

22820035
3521 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

TODD OCZUS

22820040
3525 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
DZEMO & AMDIJE IMERI

22820045
3529 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
JOEL B & JEANNE D OTTO

22820050
3533 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

TRAN H DUONG

22820055
3537 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

TODD SANTUCCI

22820060
3541 EAGLES RIDGE

DRIVE
TREVOR C & ELIZABETH

R SANCHEZ

22820065
3545 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

ERIC MCILQUHAM

22820070
3549 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

LUCIO A PEREZ

22820075
3553 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

ENRIQUE F PEREZ

22820080
3557 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

CHINSON SIM

22820085
3561 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

JON & CAROLYN
NOWACZYK

22820090
3565 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE
GEORGE STATHOPOULOS

22821220
3569 EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE

JESSICA TALLMAN

22821215
1720 RAVEN COURT

JENNIFER R BULTMAN

22870005
1601 GATEWAY BOULEVARD

LJG GATEWAY, LLC & JNG GATEWAY, LLC

22870500
1750 GATEWAY BOULEVARD

HAWKS RIDGE APARTMENTS, LLC

22810010
1601 GATEWAY BOULEVARD

CITY OF BELOIT, INC

RESIDENT TERRACE
& GRILLING STATION RESIDENT TERRACE

& GRILLING STATION

STORM WATER BASIN (TYP)

SNOW STORAGE
AREA (TYP)

HARDSCAPING
(FOR SNOW REMOVAL)

EXISTING MONUMENT
SIGN & LANDSCAPING

TYPICAL FOUNDATION
PLANTINGS

LANDSCAPED INTERIOR
ISLAND (TYP)

LOT 1 (PUD)
APARTMENT
COMMUNITY AREA
377,310 SF

PROPOSED MONUMENT SIGN
100 SF (MAX.), 6' TALL

PROPOSED GROUND SIGN
50 SF (MAX.), 4' TALL

PROPOSED BUILDING
MOUNTED BLADE SIGN
30 SF (MAX.), SEE
ELEVATION DRAWING

PROPOSED GROUND SIGN
50 SF (MAX.), 4' TALL

30
' A

CCES
S E

ASE
MEN

T

OUTLOT 1
NEIGHBORHOOD

SIGN (RETAINED BY CITY)
4,310 SF

PUBLIC WATER MAIN
EASEMENT, TO BE

DETERMINED DURING
FINAL DESIGN AND

REVIEWS

LOT 2
FUTURE PUBLIC
ROADWAY AND
RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT
254,970 SF

LOT 3
COMBINED WATER TOWER
AND LANDSCAPING BUFFER

STRIP (RETAINED BY CITY)
88,340 SF

EX
IST

IN
G 

80
' L

AN
DS

CA
PE

 B
UF

FE
R 

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
(T

O
 B

E 
RE

LE
AS

ED
)

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
30

' L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 B

UF
FE

R 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

IS
SU

AN
CE

7/
19

/2
02

4
PU

D
 S

UB
M

IT
TA

L

7/
31

/2
02

4
CS

M
 E

XH
IB

IT

8/
6/

20
24

RE
VI

SE
D

 P
UD

 S
UB

M
IT

TA
L

-
--

--

-
--

--

-
--

--
34

96
9 

- L
IN

EW
O

RK
_P

RE
LIM

 A
N

D 
PU

D.
DW

GNO
TE

: D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

AL
 D

AT
A 

IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E 
O

BT
AI

N
ED

 B
Y 

SC
AL

IN
G 

AN
Y 

PO
RT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G.

PU
D

 E
XH

IB
IT

EA
GL

ES
 R

ID
GE

 A
PA

RT
M

EN
TS

35
00

 E
AG

LE
S 

RI
D

GE
 D

RI
VE

CI
TY

 O
F 

BE
LO

IT
RO

CK
 C

O
UN

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

SHEET NO.

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

1 OF 1

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y:

LH

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y:

--
--

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 B

Y:
--

--LH

34
96

9

N

0 30 60 120

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

   
   

-  
   

  N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N 
   

 - 
   

 N
OT

 F
OR

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

  8
/6

/2
02

4 
2:

38
 P

M

LEGEND

en
gi

ne
er

s 
 s

ur
ve

yo
rs

  p
la

nn
er

s

28
57

 B
ar

te
lls

 D
riv

e
Be

lo
it,

 W
I 5

35
11

(6
08

) 3
65

-4
46

4

19
 N

. H
ig

h 
St

re
et

Ja
ne

sv
ill

e,
 W

I 5
35

48
(6

08
) 7

43
-9

35
0

10
40

 N
. W

isc
on

sin
 S

t.
El

kh
or

n,
 W

I 5
31

21
(2

62
) 3

79
-2

25
0

w
w

w
.rh

ba
tte

rm
an

.co
m

NOTES

· ZONING: EXISTING = R-3, PROPOSED = PUD
· LOT 1 (PUD) PROPOSED APARTMENT COMMUNITY AREA = 377,310 SF (8.66 AC)
· 15% OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENT = 56,597 SF
        OUTDOOR OPEN SPACE PROVIDED = 205,000 SF
· MAXIMUM DENSITY (DWELLING UNITS/ACRE) FOR R-3 ZONING IS 25 UNITS/ACRE.

PROPOSED MAXIMUM APARTMENT UNITS = 94 OVER 8.66 ACRES OF APARTMENT
AREA = 11 UNITS/ACRE, WHICH IS LESS THAN THE ALLOWED MAXIMUM.

LOT 1 (PUD) APARTMENT COMMUNITY AREA

LOT 2 FUTURE RESIDENTIAL LOTS AREA

OUTLOT 1 NEIGHBORHOOD SIGN AREA

LOT 3 COMBINED WATER TOWER AREA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - LOT 1 (PUD PARCEL)

Part of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 1579564, recorded in Volume 25 on Pages 393-395 of Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, Wisconsin,
being part of SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 and part of the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 28, Township 1 North, Range 13 East of the 4th P.M., City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 1579564, recorded in Volume 25 on Pages 393-395 of Certified Survey
Maps of Rock County, Wisconsin, thence North 30°52'47” East a distance of 436.19 feet along the Easterly right-of-way line of Gateway Boulevard; thence
South 59°06'49” East for a distance 19.99 feet; thence 47.13 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 30.00 feet and a chord which bears North
75°53'00” East a distance of 42.43 feet; thence North 30°52'49” East a distance of 59.99 feet to the Southerly right-of-way line of Eagles Ridge Drive (Water
Tower Road); thence South 59°07'13” East along aforesaid Southerly right of way line a distance of 50.00 feet; thence 411.53 feet along the arc of a curve to
the left having a radius of 533.00 feet and a chord which bears South 81°14'21” East a distance of 401.38 feet; thence North 76°38'30” East a distance of 234.06
feet; thence South 13°21'28” East a distance of 178.99 feet; thence South 74°41'01” East a distance of 155.34 feet; thence North 41°46'04” East a distance of
78.81 feet; thence South 48°13'56” East a distance of 46.50 feet; thence South 41°46'04” West a distance of 100.00 feet; thence South 01°15'29” West a
distance of 156.62 feet to the South line of aforesaid Lot 2; thence North 88°46'44” West along aforesaid South line a distance of 1188.87 feet to the point of
beginning. Containing 8.662 acres of land, more or less.

11
9



   

 

 

 

	
	
	

APPENDIX	B	
	

SIGHT	DISTANCE	EVALUATION	
	

GATEWAY	BOULEVARD	&	EAGLES	
RIDGE	DRIVE	

	 	

120



Spreadsheet created by MPM 5-20-2021; Last revision 10-16-2021

ISD CALCULATIONS (TWSC)
Performed by: Date:

Intersection:
Community:

Mainline Name: 
Sidestreet Name: 

Left-In Allowed? Yes
Left-Out Allowed? Yes P-vehicle Design Length: 19.0 feet (P = 19.0. Overwrite if other design veh)
Right-In Allowed? Yes SU-vehicle Design Length: 39.5 feet (SU-40 = 39.5. Overwrite if other design veh)

Right-Out Allowed? Yes WB-vehicle Design Length: 73.5 feet (WB-67 = 73.5. Overwrite if other design veh)
Through-Out Allowed? No

Design Speed from Left: 45 mph P SU WB
Design Speed from Right: 45 mph Design Vehicles: x x (place an "X")

Median Width: 16 feet
Minor Street Approach Grade: 0.0% If a minor street vehicle approaches the major street at greater than 3%, enter grade.

Number of Near Side Right & Bike: 0.00 equivalent 12-ft lanes.  Include tapers, auxiliary lanes, parking lanes, and bicycle accommodations.
Number of Near Side Thru: 1.00 equivalent 12-ft lanes.

Number of Far Side Thru: 1.00 equivalent 12-ft lanes.
Number of Far Side Right & Bike: 0.00 equivalent 12-ft lanes.  Include tapers, auxiliary lanes, parking lanes, and bicycle accommodations.

AASHTO or WisDOT: AASHTO

ISD CASE B1: Left Turn from Minor Street or Median (driver looking right)

P SU WB P SU WB
Base Time Gap, sec: 7.50 9.50 11.50 10.00 12.00 13.00

Additional Time Gap 1, sec: 0.67 0.93 0.93 0.67 0.93 0.93
Additional Time Gap 2, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Time Gap, sec: 8.17 10.43 12.43 10.67 12.93 13.93
Case B1 ISD, feet: 539.0 688.6 820.6 704.0 853.6 919.6

Rounded Case B1 ISD, feet: 540 690 825 705 855 920

ISD CASE B2: Right Turn from Minor Street (driver looking left)

P SU WB P SU WB
Base Time Gap, sec: 6.50 8.50 10.50 8.00 10.00 12.00

Additional Time Gap 1, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Additional Time Gap 2, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Time Gap, sec: 6.50 8.50 10.50 8.00 10.00 12.00
Case B2 ISD, feet: 429.0 561.0 693.0 528.0 660.0 792.0

Rounded Case B2 ISD, feet: 430 565 695 530 665 795

ISD CASE B3a: Crossing from Minor Street Traffic from Left (driver looking left)

P SU WB P SU WB
Base Time Gap, sec: 6.50 8.50 10.50 7.00 10.00 13.00

Additional Time Gap 1, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Additional Time Gap 2, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Time Gap, sec: 6.50 8.50 10.50 7.00 10.00 13.00
Case B3a ISD, feet: 429.0 561.0 693.0 462.0 660.0 858.0

Rounded Case B3a ISD, feet: 430 565 695 465 665 860

ISD CASE B3b: Crossing from Minor Street or Median (driver looking right)

P SU WB P SU WB
Base Time Gap, sec: 6.50 8.50 10.50 7.00 10.00 13.00

Additional Time Gap 1, sec: -6.50 -8.50 -10.50 -7.00 -10.00 -13.00
Additional Time Gap 2, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Time Gap, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Case B3b ISD, feet: 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Rounded Case B3b ISD, feet: 0 0 0 0 0 0

ISD CASE F: Left from Major to Minor (driver looking to left of access towards oncoming traffic)

P SU WB P SU WB
Base Time Gap, sec: 5.50 6.50 7.50 8.00 8.00 8.00

Additional Time Gap 1, sec: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Additional Time Gap 2, sec: N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total Time Gap, sec: 5.50 6.50 7.50 8.00 8.00 8.00
Case F ISD, feet: 363.0 429.0 495.0 528.0 528.0 528.0

Rounded Case F ISD, feet: 365 430 500 530 530 530

ISD CONTROLLING DISTANCES:

P SU WB P SU WB
430' 565' 695' 530' 665' 860'
540' 690' 825' 705' 855' 920'
365' 430' 500' 530' 530' 530'

AASHTO MINIMUM ISD WISDOT UPPER MINIMUM ISD

To Left of Access:
To Right of Access:

Left-Turn from Mainline:

AASHTO MINIMUM ISD WISDOT UPPER MINIMUM ISD

9/29/2024
Eagles Ridge Drive & Gateway Boulevard
Beloit, Wisconsin

AASHTO MINIMUM ISD WISDOT UPPER MINIMUM ISD

TADI - TSC

WISDOT UPPER MINIMUM ISD

AASHTO MINIMUM ISD WISDOT UPPER MINIMUM ISD

Gateway Boulevard
Eagles Ridge Drive

AASHTO MINIMUM ISD WISDOT UPPER MINIMUM ISD

AASHTO MINIMUM ISD

ISD Calcs
ISD

121



Spreadsheet created by MPM 5-20-2021; Last revision 10-16-2021

ISD CALCULATIONS (TWSC)
Performed by: Date:

Intersection:
Community:

Eye Height (start of Arrows): 3.5-ft for P, 7.6-ft for SU & WB
Object Height (head of Arrows): 3.5-ft

Eye Location: 14.5-ft from edge of traveled way

Special Instructions

AASHTO WisDOT
 P 540' 705' From Sidestreet
 SU 690' 855' From Sidestreet
 WB 825' 920' From Sidestreet

AASHTO WisDOT
 P 430' 530'
 SU 565' 665'
 WB 695' 860'

DRIVER

AASHTO WisDOT
 P 365' 530'
 SU 430' 530'
 WB 500' 530'

SSD CALCULATIONS
EB WB NB SB

Design Speed: 45 45
Deceleration (ft/s2): 11.2 11.2 11.2 11.2 Default rate is 11.2 ft/s 2  per AASHTO GDHS

Estimated Grade (%): 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Positive is uphill, negative is downhill
Brake Reaction Time (s): 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 Default rate is 2.5s per AASHTO GDHS

Brake Reaction (ft): 0.0 0.0 165.0 165.0
Braking Distance (ft): 0.0 0.0 194.1 194.1
Calculated SSD (ft): 0.0 0.0 359.1 359.1
Rounded SSD (ft): 0 0 360 360

Eye Height (upstream of object to be seen): 3.5-ft
Object Height (downstream of motorist): 2.0-ft

Special Instructions

E
ag

le
s 

R
id

g
e 

D
ri

ve

Gateway Boulevard Gateway Boulevard

E
ag

le
s 

R
id

g
e 

D
ri

ve
D

R
IV

E
R

Gateway Boulevard Gateway Boulevard

Beloit, Wisconsin

 North  

 

TADI - TSC 9/29/2024  Eagles Ridge Drive & Gateway Boulevard

ISD Calcs
ISD

122



N

NOT TO SCALE
3348: 10-01-24

 

BELOIT, WISCONSIN

Vehicle positioned 14.5 feet 
from edge of Gateway 
Boulevard.

 
EXHIBIT B1

INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTANCE (PLAN VIEW/STREET VIEW)
EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE & GATEWAY BOULEVARD

  

Looking north (right) on Gateway Boulevard from Eagles Ridge Drive

Looking south (left) on Gateway Boulevard from Eagles Ridge Drive

Eagles Ridge Drive

G
at

ew
ay

 B
ou

le
va

rd

’565

’096

Southern Gateway Apartments driveway is 
located near the top of this hill.  Passenger 
ISD limit is north of this driveway, and Single-
unit truck ISD limit is ~100 feet to the south. 

123



N

NOT TO SCALE
3348: 10-01-24

 

BELOIT, WISCONSIN

 
EXHIBIT B2

INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTANCE (PROFILE VIEW)
EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE & GATEWAY BOULEVARD

  

Passenger Car Intersection Sight Distance

SU Truck Intersection Sight Distance

Gateway Boulevard

Turning Vehicle - SU Truck (7.6’ Eye Height)
Turning Vehicle - Passenger Car (3.6’ Eye Height)
Object - 3.5’ Height
Sight Line (Vehicle to Object) 

LEGEND

Road profiles from Google Earth

ISD Parameters:
Design Speed:  45 mph
Through Lanes:  1 NB/1 SB
Right Turn Lanes: None
Left Turn Lane:  None, ~16 feet Striped Median

South North

E
ag

le
s 

R
id

g
e 

D
ri

ve

565’ to Left of Eagles Ridge Drive

(Right-Turn)

690’ to Right of Eagles Ridge Drive

(Left-Turn)

SPEED
LIMIT

40

NorthSouth
E

ag
le

s 
R

id
g

e 
D

ri
ve

430’ to Left of Eagles Ridge Drive

(Right-Turn)

540’ to Right of Eagles Ridge Drive

(Left-Turn)

Street-view photography shows clear visibility 
to target location with no significant bumps in 
the roadway.

Gateway Boulevard

124



N

NOT TO SCALE
3348: 10-01-24

 

BELOIT, WISCONSIN

 
EXHIBIT B3

STOPPING SIGHT DISTANCE (PROFILE VIEW)
EAGLES RIDGE DRIVE & GATEWAY BOULEVARD

  

Stopping Sight Distance

NorthSouth
E

ag
le

s 
R

id
g

e 
D

ri
ve

360’ to Left of Eagles Ridge Drive 360’ to Right of Eagles Ridge Drive

Approaching Vehicle (3.6’ Eye Height)
Object - 2.0’ Height
Sight Line (Vehicle to Object) 

LEGEND

125



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  October 9, 2024 

Agenda Item:  4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2024-17 

General Information 

Applicant R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. 
Owner: City of Beloit 
Address/Location:  3500 Eagles Ridge Drive and 3600 Eagles Ridge Drive  
Jurisdiction: City of Beloit  
Applicant’s Request: Approval of a Three-lot Plus One Outlot Certified Survey Map (CSM)  

Staff Analysis 

Proposed Land Division: The purpose of the proposed CSM is to subdivide City-owned parcels 
located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive (vacant lot) and 3600 Eagles Ridge Drive (the water tower 
parcel) into three lots plus one outlot totaling 16.642 acres.   The Alexander Company has 
proposed a multi-family development for the proposed 8.662-acre Lot 1, and if approved, the 
CSM will create the lot for the PUD development and rezoning to PUD.  Lot 2, which is 5.853 
acres, creates a future development parcel that will likely be used for residential uses.  Lot 3 
reconfigures and enlarges the existing water tower parcel to 2.028 acres in order to combine a 
strip of land between the water tower parcel and Eagles Ridge subdivision, as opposed to it being 
made part of the proposed Lot 2. Outlot 1, which is 0.099 acres is for the existing Eagles Ridge 
sign on the southeast corner of Eagles Ridge Drive and Gateway Boulevard. The proposed Lot 3 
and Outlot 1 will be retained by the City of Beloit, although Outlot 1 may be conveyed at some 
point to a homeowner’s association responsible for maintaining Eagles Ridge entry signage and 
landscaping.    

The proposed CSM also creates a public access easement over Lot 2, which serves as a proposed 
second point of access for Lot 1 (the PUD parcel).  The primary access for Lot 1 is proposed to be 
a private drive off Gateway Boulevard.  The Zoning Ordinance requires two access points because 
the proposed PUD is greater than 25 dwelling units.  

The proposed 16.642-acre CSM releases an 80-foot landscape buffer easement along the east 
edge of the property.  That easement was included in the 2002 CSM that created a 1.460-acre 
water tower parcel and a 15.182-acre parcel totaling the 16.642 acres.  The 2002 CSM also 
dedicated the Gateway Boulevard extension and dedicated Water Tower Road (renamed in 2003 
to be Eagles Ridge Drive).  The landscape buffer easement was created prior to platting Eagles 
Ridge Plat No. 1 in 2002, because the 16.642-acre subject parcel was zoned M-2, General 
Manufacturing District, not R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential District as it is currently. In 
order to allow more buildable area and flexibility in the design of Lot 2 in the future, the applicant, 
on behalf of The Alexander Company has requested the 80-foot landscape buffer be reduced to 
30 feet as shown on the proposed CSM.   While a landscape buffer would be required between 

126



manufacturing and residential zoning districts when development occurs on a manufacturing 
parcel(s), no landscape buffer is required between R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential 
District and R-1A, Single Family Residential District, which is directly adjacent to the east of the 
proposed CSM.  

Plan Commission generally takes action on proposed CSMs; however, this proposed CSM is being 
referred to Plan Commission to make a recommendation to City Council.  This is because the CSM 
includes a proposed public access easement and proposed release and creation of a landscape 
buffer easement over City property.  State law requires that City Council refer matters that 
involve the location or acceptance of public ways and public grounds, which the access easement 
and landscape buffer easement could be considered while under City ownership.    

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are residential properties to the north and east of the 
subject property zoned R-1A, Single Family Residential District, and multifamily residential uses 
to the west zoned PUD, Planned Unit Development.  To the south is a vacant parcel zoned M-2, 
General Manufacturing District in the City of Beloit and agricultural land zoned A-E, Exclusive 
Agricultural District in the Town of Turtle.

Review Agent Comments:  The proposed CSM was distributed to the Review Agents.  The review 
agents had the following comments: 

 AT&T noted that there is cabling along the north edge of the property. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached three-lot plus 
one-lot CSM located at 3500 Eagles Ridge Drive and 3600 Eagles Ridge Drive in the City of Beloit, 
subject to the following conditions: 

1. The final CSM shall update the label for Water Tower Road to Eagles Ridge Drive. 
2. The 80-foot Landscape Easement is released and replaced with a 30-foot Landscape 

Easement. 
3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 

of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Zoning Map, Certified Survey Map, Application and 2002 CSM.

127



LOCATION MAP

128



ZONING MAP

129



130



131



2002 CSM

132



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date: October 9, 2024 

Agenda Item:  4.b. 

File Number:  RPB-2024-07 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  City of Beloit Parks and Recreation Division 
 
Owner:  City of Beloit 
 
Address/Location:  1312 E. Grand Avenue  
 
Applicant’s Request: The Parks and Recreation Division has requested the approval of Phase 
Two Improvements for Turtle Creek Park located 1312 E. Grand Avenue. 
 

Staff Analysis 

Overview: Between March and June 2024, an ad-hoc committee of stakeholders who 
frequently used Turtle Creek Park pool reconvened to discuss Phase Two of the Turtle Creek 
Master Plan. The primary topic of discussion was the future of the park’s bathhouse, which has 
been closed for decades. Built in 1938 in the Art Modern Architectural style, the bathhouse 
once stood alongside a community pool, providing an essential gathering place for Beloit’s 
African American community during a time when public amenities were not equally accessible.  
 
In 1998, Turtle Creek Park was designated as a local landmark, recognized for its cultural 
significance. Although a 2016 architectural survey identified 1312 E. Grand Ave as a historic 
recreation site, it was deemed ineligible for the National Register of Historic Places.  
 
After reviewing potential cost and challenges associated with renovating the bathhouse, the 
committee concluded that demolition was the best option. However, to preserve the park’s 
historic significance, they proposed several commemorative installations designed to honor the 
parks’ role in the community and ensure the narrative remains a vital part of the park’s future.  
 
Phase Two of the project also includes the construction of new restrooms and the installation 
of a bike maintenance station, in addition to the commemorative elements. To support this 
phase, the city allocated $1 million dollars from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds.  
 
On August 14, 2024, the Park, Recreation, and Conservation Advisory Committee reviewed and 
approved Phase 2 of the Turtle Creek Master Plan.  

133



Since this is a locally landmarked site, this project also requires approval from the Landmarks 
Commission.  The Commission reviewed this project on September 17, 2024 and gave its 
approval.  
 

Wisconsin Statutes 62.23(5) requires Plan Commission to make a recommendation to City 
Council for any new structures on public lands.  Once the Plan Commission recommendation is 
made, it will be forwarded to City Council for its approval. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of Phase Two Improvements 
for Turtle Creek Park for the property located at 1312 E. Grand Avenue subject to the following 
condition:  
 

1.  Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall submit detailed 
site and architectural plans for Planning staff review and approval.  Following approval 
of these plans, a Certificate of Zoning Compliance and an Architectural Review 
Certificate will be issued. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Site Plan, and Renderings  

134



Location Map 
 

 
 
 

135



136



137



138



 

139


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2024-1003 - Attachment
	2024-999 - Attachment
	2024-1001 - Attachment
	2024-1002 - Attachment 

